Die approbierte Originalversion dieser Diplom-/ Masterarbeit ist in der Hauptbibliothek der Technischen Universität Wien aufgestellt und zugänglich.

http://www.uPtrofessional MBA Automotive industry

The approved original version of this diploma or master thesis is available at the main library of the Vienna University of Technology.

http://www.ub.tuwien.ac.at/eng



PROJECT MANAGEMENT IN MULTI COMPANIES & PRODUCTS GROUP

A Master's Thesis submitted for the degree of "Master of Business Administration"

> supervised by Prof. Ing. Milan Gregor, PhD.

Ing. Igor Šuba, PhD. 1227688

Bratislava, 15th of September 2014



Affidavit

I, ING. IGOR SUBA, Ph.D., hereby declare

- that I am the sole author of the present Master's Thesis, "PROJECT MANAGEMENT IN MULTI COMPANIES & PRODUCTS GROUPS", 65 pages, bound, and that I have not used any source or tool other than those referenced or any other illicit aid or tool, and
- 2. that I have not prior to this date submitted this Master's Thesis as an examination paper in any form in Austria or abroad.

Vienna, 15.09.2014

Signature

Acknowledgment

I would like to express my gratitude to my supervisor Prof. Ing. Milan Gregor, PhD. for the useful comments, remarks and engagement through the learning process of this master thesis. Furthermore I would like to thank Ing. Lucia Debnarova for her help with the survey. Last but not least let me thank also to the participants of my survey, who were that kind to spend their time filling out the questionaires.

Abstract

Project management is almost a scientific discipline today. It is one of the fields where the practice hounds the theory. Pulse of industry of European automobile producers and sellers is so fast and dynamic as a result of the change of global conditions that the times when the theory described the processes and methodologies were set and then applied are gone a long time ago. Today this synchronically ticking organism dictates the trends in the sphere of development of supporting tools for the management of all the processes which participate on it. According to the theory of management the challenge for managers of the 21st century is to get over the failure. At the present the survival of automotive suppliers is conditioned by the ability to create a successful result from a lot of successes and failures in the individual sections of separate projects and by the means of proper project management to transform acquired nomination into successful supplies in the course of whole duration of the production.

The thesis deals with the description of one of the ways how a tool for the support of project management and administration processes can be created in order to enable the owner of the process the so-called project manager to be successful.

Table of Contents

1	INTRODUCTION	10
1.1	Objectives of the Master's Thesis	11
1.2	Methods Used in Solving the Master's Thesis	12
1.3	Methods of Facts procesing and Evaluation	12
2	LITERATURE REVIEW - THEORY AND HISTORY	13
2.1	History and Today situation in PM	13
2.2	A new point of view on PM after 2008	13
2.3	Supporting SW tools for project management	22
3	ANALYSIS OF CUSTOMER DEMANDS & SYSTEMS IN PM	25
3.1	Internal demands analysis	25
3.2	What environment and interface does the customer use	32
3.3	How many environments does the customer have at several projects	32
3.4	How is the coordination of several projects managed within big OEM	33
3.5	The grade of internal integration of several project man. system	36
3.6	Restrictions of different business types	39
3.7	Overload of sources - ways of elimination	40
3.8	People utilization optimization – draft of solutions	41
4	PROPOSED SOLUTION - SUPPORTING TOOLS OF PM	
	IN HYBRID ENVIRONMENT	43
5	MODEL IMPLEMENTATION – SW SUPPORT REALISATION TOOLS	S
	(EXPERIMENTAL SECTION)	45
5.1	Tools for Planning	45
5.2	Tools for Task scheduler	46
5.3	Notifications tools	46
5.4	Reporting	48
5.5	Customer internal interface engine	48
5.6	PM integration into a management structures	49
6	MODEL FINALLY IMPLEMENTATION	51
6.1	Theoretical Benefits	51
6.2	Practical Benefits	51
6.3	Recommendations for Further Research	52
7	CONCLUSION	53
8	LITERATURE SOURCES	56

9 APPENDIX

60

List of Figures

Figure 1 – Project failure chart

Figure 2 – Table of project management tools

Figure 3 – Chart representing answers to question 1 (in %)

Figure 4 – Chart representing answers to question 4 (in %)

Figure 5 – Chart representing answers to question 5 (in %)

Figure 6 – Chart representing answers to question 6 (in %)

Figure 7 – Chart representing answers to question 2

Figure 8 – Chart representing answers to question 3

Figure 9 - Screenshot master / supplier meeting status

Figure 10 – Platforms of project management tools

Figure 11 – Microsoft project GUI

Figure 12 – Sample timetable chart for components delivery

Figure 13 – Screenshot from Actano RPlan

Figure 14 – Screenshot Time plane for delivery of tools components

Figure 15 – Project communication matrix

Figure 16 – Screenshot MSP result of utilization source

Figure 17 – Tier 1 supplier - final platforms solution

Figure 18 – Integration of MS Project into SharePoint

Figure 19 – Sharepoint tasks list screenshot

Figure 20 – Task detail with editable window

Figure 21 – MS Outlook notification email with task link

Figure 22 – Export of tasks from MS Project/Sharepoint to Excel

Figure 23 – Graphic report extension in Sharepoint

Figure 24 – Graphic status of tasks deadline from RPlan

Abbreviations

Dimense++	ERP system
EDI	Electronic data interchange
ERP	Enterprise resource planning
Excel	Microsoft sheet calculator
GUI	Graphic user interface
KWT	Calendar Week (German)
Outlook	Microsoft email client
МоМ	Minutes of meeting
MSP	Microsoft Project software system for scheduling project
PLM	Product lifecycle management
PM	Project manager
SAP	Systeme Anwendungen und Produkte (ERP system)
Sharepoint	Microsoft enterprise company infrastructure platform
RPLAN	Software system for scheduling project
SQL	Database system
SOP	Start Of Production

1 INTRODUCTION

We have been accompanied by the projects since the beginning of the world but the project management is not mentioned until the second half of the 20th century. Until that time the projects were managed by informal methods based on the ad hoc basis. The work of Frederick Taylor and Henry Gantt made an important contribution to discipline of the project management at the beginning of the 20th century. Famous techniques like CPM (Critical Path Method) and PERT started to emerge in the 50's. United States Department of Defense created the WBS method (Work Breakdown Structure) in the 60's and gradually they started to establish several project management organizations, as for example IPMA or PMI. At present there exist a number of different project management frameworks, hundreds of assistant tools and techniques for effective projects control. So why have been the project management methods developed only in the last decades and were not needed before?

Theory as well as need to manage projects and all the key changes in the company have been confirmed hundreds of times on the global projects since the origin of the PMI methodology. The magic of the project management is its success and relevance of rules of small company and change that last for 3 months for 20 employees as well as changes in global project of some infrastructure or technology on the worldwide basis in the international understanding (Y2K etc.). The theory of the project management has not been changed since its origin. The world has changed. The time which we have for the realization of change has been changed, availability of resources has been changed, ability to share and hire them has been changed.

Time period given for new products to be placed on the market has been changed especially. Today OEM automobile producers do not have time to decide strategically where; in which category is the right time for the release of new model of automobile. Some automobile factories which were the symbols of automotive recently were buried into the history by the market. Some automobile factories had to be saved from this fate by the government interventions whereas the most powerful were also included. Today the automobile factories are powered by the market. New open territories are China, Russia, Asia, South America. The markets do not ask for suitable strategies. There survive those who are prepared, able to provide that, what the customer is willing to buy in given time and given corner of the world. The paradoxes are low sell of e-automobiles, the biggest rise of the sell just in the category of luxurious automobiles etc. Besides sermonizing of the PM methodology I will point out some opinions which represent my observations about what is the project management today in comparison to the original theory.

1.1 Objectives of the Master's Thesis

The reason for the topic of this Master Thesis is to propose an elastic and sufficiently adaptable architecture or tools, supporting today's needed supply processes for supplier of OEM producers. I wanted to describe the needs and tools sufficient to publish the environment in which they occur and what requirements must be accepted.

Their description and solution design is applied at the system vendor as a result of this work, but its meaning is more 5like a challenge for other solutions and creating a transparent space for comparing the solutions to the acute problems.

The Main Objective of the Master's Thesis:

To create elastic and sufficiently adaptable architecture or tools solution for project managers in their everyday work.

The Milestones of the Master's Thesis

- Analysis of software tools status in project management methodology nowadays
- Analysis of internal software support needs
- Analysis of customer demands
- Draft a situation of communication between customers & suppliers
- Draft a required Solutions from project managers and customers
- Create (build) a solution
- Verify solutions into a system supplier

1.2 Methods Used in Solving the Master's Thesis

- Support of my own knowledge with literature used
- Combination of my practical experience & methodology facts from literature used
- Analysis & comparation of present theory and facts
- Creation of a solution based on my professional IT skills as analyst & architect of IT solutions
- 1.3 Methods of Facts Processing and Evaluation
- Comparation of our internal system status and customers' feedback
- Survey creation for project managers
- Application at Tier No.1 supplier

2 LITERATURE REVIEW – THEORY AND HISTORY

2.1 History and Today situation

Chapter history of project management is only an introduction to diversification of the perspectives how the project management looks like today, particularly in the field of Automotive and especially after the year 2008. Until that time it was "sufficient" to go through the acquirement of the project management theory, to decide which from the available and tested methodology is right, to retrain the employees, to realize structural and internal legislative changes in the company and to begin implementation. Success or non-success was given in advance by the consistence, how the realization of steps was done, interest and support of top management which contributed to achieve this result.

2.2 A new point of view on PM after 2008

Project management as a rodeo [4]¹

In the first place it is needed to state that more and more projects which are changed into a program and it means that the control is divided between several project managers. It means that the project culture is being changed and we have to learn it from the beginning to the end, because the theory is one thing and the practice it is a RODEO.

It is composed of the following components:

- Barrel racing preparation of the offer (fast, well, forget nothing)
- Team penning determination of the team (there are really all of them)
- Cattle penning determination of the leaders (simplification of the communication, delegation)
- Breakaway roping realization (procedures, terms, control, results)

These are shortened "rules of rodeo" by us. To these rules belong: qualification of the employees, personal skills, seniority, personality of a person, teamwork and team responsibility, use of software tools, regulation of processes, one storage place for the documentation, integrated access, link between the project and strategic requirements of the customer, stakeholders (who they are, what kind of influence they have, how they are changed), indeterminacy of the project environment and others.

¹ <u>http://www.itnews.sk/2012-06-04/c149171-dnesne-projektove-riadenie-pripomina-rodeo</u>

Not only project/program manager and his people but also the whole company have to be prepared for this kind of "feloniousness". It is a hard road without a compact view of the management of the company and "project production". On this road there can come into existence a number of misinterpretations, mutual misunderstanding and diversion from the road which has to lead to the satisfied management of the company – it means that the project is delivered in agreed time, with the presupposed capacities and planned budget.

As a result the established goal cannot be approached separately, but only together. Not only project team, businessmen but also top management respond to arisen changes, and it is in the time when the costs are needed to be saved and it is needed to satisfy the needs of the customers to the greater extend as we were used to. Today it is not only about the management of workflow between separate project tasks, meeting the deadlines, the costs but also about the flexibility to react on various requirements which can come into existence in the course of the project.

Common sense [5]²

So why have been the project management methods developed only in the last decades and were not needed before? The answer is considerably simple. In the 20th century the demands on the productivity and effectivity were rising enormously. It is indubitable that today's society and organizations face much more aggressive competition in comparison to the past. It forces the companies to use more effective methods. The studies conducted in recent years show that the usage of precise PM methodology in comparison to the uncontrolled (or no) methodology can increase the productivity even by 20 up to 30 percent. Is the project management only the application of the common sense? We will be able to give the answer, if we define common sense at two levels.

- 1. On the first level it is a prompt wisdom,
- 2. Second level is about recording this wisdom in the course of the years.

Summary: both mentioned levels of common sense are necessary for the project management. The projects cannot be lead only with the obeying of instructions and commands. Equally the projects which are on a certain level of complexity cannot be lead only with relying on one's own skills however. Project management is organized common sense. In the hands of clever and experienced people the project

² <u>http://www.itnews.sk/2011-05-05/c139736-vyuzitie-sedliackeho-rozumu-v-riadeni-projektov</u>

methodology offers an advice, provides the structure and ensures consistency. Clever people have learned to use the methodology and not vice versa.

Leaders are the heads of the successful companies [6]³

Key requirement for the project manager is to be a proper leader. Why the leader? According to the president of BPUG Slovakia, Peter Balc, the leader achieves goals by the means of people he is responsible for and he cooperates with. Project manager is team builder who necessarily has to have great knowledge in the field of interpersonal relationships, besides he has to have ability to motivate, inspire and to lead the team.

One of the solutions how to deal with the project management and team leading is to apply coaching. A common feature shared by coaching and project management is work with expected or more precisely future outputs. Project manager is able to release the potential of his team with the use of coaching; he is able to lead team to accept the responsibility and to instigate the team members to their own solution of any situation. This method can be used by mature and experienced leaders who are able to actively listen and suppress directive way of the leading.

New trends in project management [6]³

Development and systematic changes in the society force project management to keep abreast with the times and to adapt. Globalization, crisis, pressure on the expenses and time, ecology and mobility of the employees. All of these are the factors which influenced the origin of new type of the project team different in its nature. We can see virtual teams in the international companies more and more often. Author defines virtual team as a geographically dispersed team of real people with real goals who work across the organizations independent on the time and space, using modern technologies to connect. Outputs of this kind of team are real. Functioning of virtual teams is valued by many people. Their contributions are numerous:

- Possibility to get top-level professionals not dependent on the locality
- Greater flexibility, satisfaction of the employees, fast professional growth
- Decrease of the costs and time saving in the case of travelling
- Increase of the competitiveness of the organization

³ Jana Balážová Ing. Peter Minárik, 23.7.2013 - BPUG Slovensko

Every pro has also its cons and that is why also critical replies can be found and it is the result of the following reasons:

- Demanding organization of the cooperation
- Motivation and control of performance of employees
- Lack of common contact risk of low trust and unity
- Lack of personal communication

Leadership can be understood at two levels according to them. The first one is the work and approach of the project manager as leader and the other level is directed to the firms which are composed of more leaders and they realize attractive projects together as the first in their domain. To be the leader brings not always only positives. It requires certain amount of courage to be able to inspire people in your environment, to deal with a new not researched, uncertified thought and to be able to enforce it in practice. Leadership is about ability to decide also in difficult periods of time. It is exactly this characteristic – to make a decision and especially to take the responsibility for it which makes leader from average manager.

Project crisis [7]⁴

A great extent of the projects realized at the present, their complexity and very unstable environment of contemporary economics, all these factors can be the source of origin of crisis situation in projects.

It is interesting that even extensive publications about project management do not deal with the project crisis (M. Rossenau [3]⁵ and A. Svozilová [4]⁶). In contrast to this it is important to state the fact that even the crisis management monographs do not draw the attention to the specifics of application of crisis management in projects .

A seminar dedicated specially to the issue of the operative project management drew attention to the necessity to deal with the crisis when implementing the projects. Exactly in course of project implementing itself there occurs a situation when the prioject team is not able to solve the crisis situation with the use of means available.

Definition of the term project crisis

Project crisis can be defined as the loss of the balanced, stabile state of the project which can occur suddenly or gradually.

⁴ <u>http://www.odbornecasopisy.cz/index.php?id_document=42740</u>

⁵ [2] ROSSENAU, M.: Řízení projektů. Computer Press, Praha, 2000

⁶ [3] SVOZILOVÁ, A.: Projektový management. GRADA Publishing, Praha, 2006

Project crisis has its individual development dependent on the intensity, space which it affects, and specific external and internal conditions in which it takes place.

Key identifiers of the crisis in some of its forms are:

- Loss of the bottleneck critical source
- Long-term dysfunction of project team, or loss of concrete key team members,
- Certain unforeseen negative changes in the social, natural or legal environment
- Loss of the liquidity of the investor and other threats of the failure of main goal of the project and their combinations

The fact that the project will be returned to the hands of the project team after the crisis diversion generally means that there will be:

- Increase of the project budget on the ground of covering of financial losses in the course of crisis as well as expenses for crisis itself,
- Preplanning or delay of original term of the project, because the time lost in the course of crisis solution is not possible to catch up
- Other changes in the plan of the project, e.g. in the field of resources, suppliers etc.,
- Cancellation of the original headman of the project or some members of the project team

However these facts have to be understood as the inevitable changes in the project which should be performed immediately as a result of crisis which happened in the course of the project.

The development of project management registered a significant expansion in last two decades.

The times, when the huge projects were managed by the technicians – mechanical engineering, building, IT engineers or developers who delegated themselves into these functions and called themselves project managers without any knowledge of project management principles, are already the matter of past.

Firms all over the world are the victims of projects which are constantly in the state of crisis and which cost and will cost hundreds of thousands of EUR. Unfortunately many of them are willing to finance this kind of projects and cover the losses instead of investing into the steps which cost only a fraction from these loses and which would

prevent waste of sources and save money. Reasons why it happens in this way are the result of the inability to manage the critical state of the project

Manager is not able to master multi-project management when the terms, goals as well as budget are not kept [8]⁷

Management of several projects at the same time is different from the management of single business or individual project.

Limited sources

Each organization which wants to <u>be</u> successful must react to the challenges as well as opportunities of the environment. It cannot afford to perceive only one of them and ignore others. As a result it deals with several tasks at the same time. It deals with some of them as a project and others within the frame of linear structures and processes. These tasks compete with each other for the resources of the organizing e.g. people and money. These are however limited in each company.

Death spiral

Discontent of the employees is one of symptoms. It is followed by decrease of their performance and termination notices. Sooner or later the overall performance of the organization is decreased as a result. It has to recruit and train new employees, staff costs are increased. Performance of the company remains to be in decrease because those who leave slack off and the new ones are not trained yet.

Furthermore their employee orientation depletes part from the capacity of more experienced employees.

Multitasking

The second problem which is the result of insufficient mastering of multi-project management is incorrect multitasking. What does it mean? It means that resources, often the most valued ones, "jump" from one task which is in progress to other. Herewith the time spent on the solution of each of the tasks is lengthened excessively and the quality of the output is generally decreased.

Next problem of incorrect multi-project management is decrease of the mutual trust of the management and employees. Managers say: "Our projects last too much time,

⁷ <u>http://podnikanie.etrend.sk/podnikanie-riadenie/ako-sa-vyhnut-bolehlavu-z-viacerych-projektov.html</u>

timetables as well as budgets are generally not met and contributions, if any come, are left behind the expectations."

Solution

Uniform and united support of changes by the whole management of organization. Words say more than deeds and changes supported by the management only verbally or even obstructed by some of its members are doomed to be a failure.

Thorny path

Changes leading to successful multi-project management are not easy nor are they painless and it is not possible to realize them from day to day. The firm however which copes with them successfully will solve a number of problems – from those with management of people up to constant delay of projects and their contributions. But especially it will increase the effectiveness i.e. ability to bring into effect more projects with the same sources in the same period of time or the same amount of projects with smaller amount of resources. Last but not least it will get edge over the competing business which have not realized this kind of changes yet.

Five steps for mastering of more projects at the same time:

- Establishing of unified system of management of priorities
- Establishing and respecting the methodology of project management
- Establishing of central organizational unit, project office
- Training of employees according to the accepted methodology of project management
- Establishing of effective and unified system of project scheduling as well as resource allocation

The three best lessons I learned from a failed project $[9]^{\beta}$

Project failures aren't a total waste of time -- those experiences will help teach what not to do to make your next project a success. I'm sure your resume highlights your project successes, but all experienced project managers have been part of a failed or troubled project at least once in their careers. The 2009 Chaos Report indicated 66% of projects were either challenged or failed to obtain business goals.

⁸ <u>http://www.techrepublic.com/blog/it-consultant/the-three-best-lessons-i-learned-from-a-failed-project/</u>



From the point of view of the causes project failures are categorized as disability to absorb the essential change of the scope of the project, change of key goals of the project in the course of the realization, strategic change of the direction, stopping of the supplies of sources (financial) or complete cancelling of the project. Does this sound familiar to you? Do you see yourself somewhere in between these causes of the problems with the management of Your project? Do not be ashamed and raise your hand, it is more than obvious that it applies also to your case. Probably, there exists no perfect project without any problems. Failures and problems of your actual project will make you stronger and they give you experience useful for the elimination of your future mistakes and failures.

Key takeaway: Adopt a change management process early in the program that all stakeholders will follow.

Heroism and big individual actions principally lead to the only guarantee in the project world. And it is the guarantee that the project will end in a failure. Heroes are good as film characters but project heroes have no place in contemporary world. The power of success lies in team and not in the strutting of individual's stuff.

Key take away: Build and trust an effective team.

Projects fail in the course of various phases of their life-cycle and there are a lot of theories of risk management for the elimination of oncoming threats. The only guarantee crosses all the risks and gives the power to their elimination. Well-built powerful homogeneous and motivated team. The key to the success is the use of all the mistakes in one's own benefit and transform them into common success of a team and result also in the success of the project.

How To Hire A Great Project Manager [10]⁹

The problem of today's firms is the finding of right project managers. The times when the project managers were produced in the schools and courses as a wave of fashion is already gone in the field of industry. Businessmen are looking for the project managers who have got through several projects. Including the unsuccessful ones. This experience is the only guarantee and hope that the future project will be better and more successful. The methodology describes 5 ways how to find the right project manager.

Stop Using Generic Job Descriptions

Stop describing the position of the project manager. There exists no universal muster for all these positions. Each project is specific and requires individual combination of skills.

Decide Exactly What You Really Need

Have a clear vision about what you want. Agree about the requirements which the project manager has to fulfil for you. If he identifies with them you will be well on the way. If not, start from the beginning.

Critical Projects Need Dedicated Project Managers

Anything much larger, and especially critical projects, need dedicated project managers.

If You Need a Specific Methodology Used, Say So

If you need to incorporate system elements and firm standards into the project implementation, define what kind of them and how it has to be realized. It will start the

⁹ <u>http://www.forbes.com/sites/groupthink/2014/05/07/how-to-hire-a-great-project-manager</u>

congruence and integrity of the steps of the project manager and your expectations. At the same time agree about the way and form by which will be the methodology and standards required by you applied.

Eliminate the Essay Questions

Following of some of the above-mentioned recommendations, you can apply several methods and recommendations at the same time in parallel. At the same time in the course of their solution you will be embodied with another requirements for the realization. By the means of the right filtering of the requirements and good orientation in the priority scheduling of the initiatives and needs, you can find the right sequence of the steps for the management of the goals and elimination of unimportant questions and initiatives.

2.3 Supporting SW tools of project management

In the course of the time there were developed various supporting tools for project management support, even extensive systems for management and planning. Their growth was the result of growth of the number of tasks in separate projects, involvement of larger amount of project employees, internationalism of project teams, absence of personal meetings, when the project teams and meetings started to be organized and coordinated from the distance by the means of the communication technologies and last but not least with the overlap of more projects realized by a great part of the people from the same team. Other level of the pressure on creation of tools is the report need of shareholders and project initiators. The times are already gone when it was enough for the project documentation on available network-attached storage places is not enough. Today the use and the filling of advanced tools take over the routine of monitoring of tens and hundreds of tasks, terms, notifications, routine preplanning, automatic reporting of basic attributes and they are a necessary tool how to cope with huge extensive projects today.

The world of tools is more colorful than the MS Project. For the expanding of the horizons I will mention also some others, but only from the field of classic project management. Specific fields like government, building industry, and banking definitely have even more perfected tools for project management which take into consideration their specifics. Before we start to deal with the most published list of the project management tools, here follows unorganized short description of some alternative tools:

Commercial tools [11]¹⁰:

Clarizen online project management solution (SaaS).
Daptiv PPM online project management solution.
AgileEVM Web-oriented tool.
EcoSys EPC Enterprise Planning & Controls.

Hansoft integrated solution for "agile" and "lean" development, team Gantt planning,
UMT Project Essentials perfect tools for business planning for the MSP Server
CA Clarity PPM provides a basis for better decisionmaking about the portfolio
In-Step the tool which automatically stores all the project results in the central storage
OnTime system for project management and mistake monitoring for SCRUM teams.
PSNext software for project and portfolio management (PPM) at the corporate level
Project in a box Software for project management support lead by methodology.

Open source

OpenProj it is open source project management software similar to MS Project
Project.net offers web solution for project management at the corporate level.
Project-Open web-based software for small and medium organizations.
Open Workbench Windows desktop application which facilitates work with harmonogram of the project and supports project management.

It is hard to declare today whether the open-source tools fall behind the commercial ones in quality and support. In the case of the commercial tools there is guaranteed support, to say the truth, however, they keep behind the open-source tools in their new technology and possibilities just because of the standardization and distribution management, training, support. Open-source tools have no limitations, they start new objects of the functioning, however, they suffer from the lack of documentation and the guarantee of support of some partner is always disputable and problematic.

¹⁰ <u>http://www.itkonzult.sk/pm-sw.html</u>

Paradoxically integrity and compatibility have never been a problem which could not be solved in the case of these tools.

In the conclusion of the theoretical part I will deal with the publishing of general, although according to my knowledge not complete, list of project management tools. Offer is varied and range of the functionality is diverse. Each of them can be said to be the most suitable for specific environment in which it was developed and in which it is used. I want to avoid the comparison of tools. The final use of one tool or another is nevertheless determined by the external circumstances today:

- Terms and conditions for the customer
- Multinational character of the group
- Technical support of the product
- Integrability into internal / external systems
- Reporting demands
- Internal platform of IT infrastructure and others.

It was not my ambition to get a complete list. List of most popular tools is in Appendix_2 – *Figure 2 Table of project management tools*.

3 ANALYSIS OF CUSTOMER DEMANDS & SYSTEMS

3.1 Internal demands analysis

I realized basic simple research in order to find out the demands of market / customers and internal need of project managers. It was oriented directly to the statements about customer demands and internal monitoring; management needs and needs on reporting of the state of projects.

There are the results :

Question 1: In the course of project management You are mostly occupied by:

- Observance of terms
- Quality achievement
- Organization of your own team
- Change of the demands of the customer



Figure 3 – Chart representing answers to question 1 (in %)

Answer of the group of project managers is surprisingly balanced between the responsibility for the observance of terms and quality achievement. There are sufficient tools to achieve customer-defined quality in present technologically advanced time. From digital processing of the product model, over CAD construction, simulations, automatic postprocessors and machining centers generators, 3D data for scraping and tool tuning up to contactless measurements spatially resolved measurements of molded components. It depends on the process observance and

norms as ISO, TS, VDA and norms of OEM producers in order not only to produce given quality but also to preserve it permanently.

Observance of terms is a hard nut to crack in today's hectic time. Drastic term shortening of placing of new automobile models on the market and uncompromising pressure on the development terms, therms of prototypes, testing series and start of the production of new series models, are the reaction on the crisis in the year 2008. Dominance of this parameter in the research confirms the fact that it is difficult to meet this requirement and responsibility for the true choice of tools for the support of its achievement as well. As this trend could be estimated in the course of the creation of little group of questions, further questions were focused on the specification and attitude polarization, which tools are used by project managers as their own decision and rather as their intuition and which they have to use as the decision of the customer. Change of the terms is closely related to the third dominant group of answers - change of the demans of the customer. It is about the term but also term not- related changes. By the use of them the customer compensates his internal problems and efforts to put the blame for his own nonobservance of the terms, problems in the course of prototype completing, not harmonizing the tolerance of configurations and components from different suppliers, impact of new technologies on completed units etc.



Question 4 : You manage actual project internally in the environment of :

Figure 4 – Chart representing answers to question 4 (in %)

The goal of this question was to demonstrate clearly which of the tools is dominant. It was surprising even for myself that there is withdrawal of Excel and increasing

tendency to use MS Project standardized tool. The second noticeable percentage represents ERP systems themselves (Dimenze++, SAP). Today's pressure of the customers on the systematicity of processes, team organization with several tens of employees involved into the tasks extended to several tens of months force the project manager to use a tool which will provide him with the basic functionality in flash report of the state of the project, sources congestion notifications and easy replanning of the terms changed by the customers. Several tools meet mentioned requirements, however, many of them are proprietary (Enovia, SmartTeam) ... and they are more or less bound to the project type or type of processed data. However, in general understanding in contemporary state of the industry and project management development MS Project wins its position as a cause of its standardization, availability, integration and worldwide support. From the point of view of project processing and its agenda is its functionality well-arranged, available, manageable for basic certification level in 3 days. It facilitates basic time management of tasks, human, mechanical, financial resources, asignment of resources to the tasks, capa planning etc. It is relationally fixed between the project tasks, it has sufficient signalling and reporting functions. Its abilities are more or less dependent on the ability of the project manager to use it and to plan the project in detail. In the course of the coordination of management of more projects MS Project has Pro functionality - it means that in Enterprise environment architecture server - individual MS Projects Pro are coordinated and they are able to allocate the sources from each other, to solve their collision in time on the principle of machine decision making and automatically offer replanned scenarios for individual projects. At the same time this solution plays the role of basic elimination and blocking function in the case of the new project incorporation what is very important for incorrect project incorporation into unavailable capacity times or overloaded sources on which the project counts.



Question 5 : You consider as generally most widely used project management and reporting tool:

Figure 5 – Chart representing answers to question 5 (in %)

The question observes opinion of project managers about what they think about the tools serving as support for their work. As opposed to tool which they use, which fundamentally influence customer terms, at the level of manager's own decision making excel is still in balance with MS Project product. There can be felt the persistence in the use of simple native excel, but the functionality which makes the MS Project different from excel starts to make MS Project more successful. Excel has not a whole set of functions which is already a necessity today, and which are provided by MS Project in its base package and intuitive management. Therefore it is natural and obvious that the necessity to use MS Project because of reporting of the project in relation to the customer forced project managers to become acquainted with this product and to start to perceive value difference in the function of these tools and it unconsciously creates the need to reorient on more sophisticated tools suitable for their work performance.

Other groups of answers very significantly identify by their number the loss of positions of ERP systems and their modules / functionalities for the support of project management. Today the projects are not an accounting-controlling collector of the costs as in the past, when this only ability of the system besides the overall term was the subject of evaluation of the use of order / project costs. The time dynamics of the changes of customer terms in the course of the project overrun the ability of the massive ERP systems to give to the project manager a tool realizing his own project and manager needs a long time ago. The percentage distance of the separate

categories exactly represents the ability / disability of the individual ERP to assist these needs..





Figure 6 – Chart representing answers to question 6 (in %)

This is a shock for the supporters of their own written records and excel. At the same time it is a signal that there is massive trend in the case of OEM producers to standardize reporting and management tools as the cause of the initiatives of a big amount of suppliers. There is no other chance today when the OEM producer himself places on the market two, not rarely also three models at the same time and he has potentially tens of Tier 1 suppliers, whom he can coordinate and manage. It is a necessity for living which is in conflict with the need of their own internal tool for coordination of their own project and organizational processes. Therefore we are the witnesses of the fact that despite its expansibility and transparency MS Project is not an internal environment for project management. It creates a rather ususal situation when the overall state is reported in MS Project because of the standardization but there is different internal system (R-Plan) of the OEM producer for term monitoring which is directly entered by the suppliers. At first sight there comes into existence the duplicity of project monitoring and reporting, but that is not the case. It is the analogy of CAD systems where each of the producers, designers and developers uses for historical reasons his own system, but there are defined international standards for the unification of given data between the systems (DFX...) by the means of which given model can be at least precisely displayed in any other system, than in which it was created. Automotive MS Project plays this role in the world. It is intercorporate

but also intracorporate standard. Although there is often a different system for own massive commitment to the monitoring and control of own processes, all the other internal systems within the group are interfaced into this system. In the past Matador as such also created its own controlling, notification and reporting tool on the basis of MS SQL data which was able to include and integrate technical, developmental, strategic, marketing, organizational, HR projects etc. There is used a new combination of tools, based on the requirements of OEM standards at the present time of the Automotive groups. This combination will be described later in conclusions and recommendations.

Question 2: Reporting and maintenance of the data of actual state of the project in customer's system



Figure 7 – Chart representing answers to question 2

Let's face the truth. External pressure of the customer to insert the data into reporting system of the customer is paradoxically perceived as positive in the feedback. It surprised me as well; I am not going to lie. It confirms the historic axiom that human does not come over new things and tools and unconsciously creates barriers and argumentation against their use and leaving of customs and habits. If he is forced to do that, with the hindsight the project managers admit that when they were already forced to use customer's system and his standards, it contributed to their own mastering of project management. Positive side is the fact that they will use it from their own initiative in the case of other projects and at the same time the impact of the necessity to use standardized systems in the headquarters and first producers. There is no other way. What kind of system is used is in the second place. In the first place

it is important to have any system but for all. Unification. Dogma, on which SW giant built his world. He never sold solutions. He used to buy solutions but sold the standards. Today we have to state objectively that the way as well as decisions were successful.

It creates 75 % of respondents together with the opinion that it is even desirable. Conclusion – there is nothing else to add. Only 25 % of project managers answered that this is duplicity – their reporting into the customer's system demonstrably makes their work more complicated and there is no contribution to project management.



Question 3 : The customer demands reporting of the project in:

Figure 8 – Chart representing answers to question 3

And what to say in the conclusion? Excel's bells tolls even if I would express the claim that it will be an emergency brake for the project manager in the tablet / notebook / smart phone for at least next 10 years for what if cases.

Arrival of the corporate systems into the routine use (not only for share holders reporting) is a condition for survival today. It is the matter of being and not-being to have a standardized portal for change of the tasks and gathering of information about the developments of orders. That is not EDI. EDI is only the exchange of information. Master tool of the project is a matter of mastering or failure at least in the field of release of new model on the market. The trend continues by the growth of internal pressure of suppliers on the creation of own portals for the coordination of own tens, hundreds and often also thousands of tasks, to fulfil own deliveries for the customer.

At the same time the suppliers stand under the same pressure in the course of the coordination of their own sub-contractors.

3.2 What environment and interface does the customer use

It's easy. Customer needs all faithful information about all parts of project in real Time. In any case the use of any tool means only different platform however, there is never difference in reporting statuses of the project. As a result we deal with an absolute mixture of all available systems internally from the side of the supplier and quite an interesting choice can be made towards the same concern in the case of different projects for different factories and upcoming models.

Pos.:	Sachverhalt / Merkmale	Status	Dringlichkeit	Kurz - Kommentar	Status MAV
001	Elistencine angegeben Stoar consisten	•	ideorie:	Chine and Month of Conversion to the processing and Probability on INNEED TO AND A DOC	2012
002	Terminolocarung	•	ittorit	Noraning de graanten toode al Esolekter entre anteletikar en rooselikar Noranggeor - Antelisary ech echtoprox	But to 2 -10
003	Ropostilligionorg	•	Reads	Rass to terrenetoprog, decod anti- totesi ata seriodostese setegeni potote multici acti orng	-
004	8. Plan / Terminicarise: / Transporent: / Planungsoccheriteit	•	(Real)	Semanaphin mili assesso) is higher/integrations	that he is not
005	Nonsearing, "Attributed aging	•	199428	Morth Recordshipping and Processing	2012
006	Boarlaniung (Begeleens (RMC))	V	(86628)		
007	Verpflictions die Entrafking von Standarde Ind Sub-Laberarden (Laberardenanheitsteing Edit 126. Salvereitallung, Standarde)	•	10000	Maloutrooper copieté la tes	24.4.1
800	Projetitorgangearen	V	100500		
009	Entrating on Tegelorgendung	V	(85028)		
010	Candulang Jarlinchur Sorienlacheran?	•	(South	Masser and warm on addres /W - 30 one address Tonadog angenomen warm on Address	Statistics In .

Figure 9 – Screenshot master / supplier meeting status

3.3 How many environments does the customer have at several projects

Today's big corporations are so extensive and in their own developmental and producing structures aggregate tens of development centers and tens of factories that they themselves also fight the standardization of the tools for management and reporting of the state of the projects. A significant part of the factories is created by acquisitions as the result of the capacity expansion of OEM producers and they are acquired including the history of all the used systems. The diversity of these systems is not dramatic, the pressure of the period and necessity of survival in the conditions after the year 2008 decimated the diversity of used systems. Today the producers fight rather with the issue of the standardization of the versions of used tools and globalization of announced standards. If you become aware of the fact that TOP automobile producers of European format have tens of main factories and in the final effect they have hundreds of directly controlled production, logistic and development daughter factories, we are given the answer to the question whether the internal world of tools is unified. NO. In real life it happens that the same OEM uses several tools for several projects in the case of the same group of suppliers (project meeting, excel, MS Project, R-Plan). In the case of smaller suppliers the situation is simpler and a lot more standardized. The different situation occurs in the case of suppliers...

3.4 How is the coordination of several projects managed within big OEM

The supplier is in the position when each project has to be reported in the environment and according to customer's instructions and at the same time it is liable to internal firm standardization of the reports in relation to the management regardless of the system required by the customer. Ideally it is one platform, but two reporting worlds. In the direction of the customer it reports the project state, internal need of the resources, problems with resources, delays of the tasks, reporting, notifications, project team organization, subsuppliers cooperation, costs.

The supplier has to master cornerstone of project management in order to master all the projects of his suppliers:

Resources

- People
- Equipment
- Materials
- Cooperators

Time

- Tasks
- Dependencies
- Critical Path

Money

- Costs
- Contingencies
- Profit

Scope

- Project size
- Goals
- Requirements

For the support of project managers the IT department of the company has to secure the deployment and especially integration of following tools in order to capture all the customers'requirements:

- R-Plan
- Microsoft Project
- Microsoft Project server
- Microsoft SharePoint server
- Microsoft Exchange server
- Microsoft SQL database server
- Microsoft Outlook
- Enovia
- Smart Team
- Excel
- MoM project meetings
- Email conversation

Their mutual integration and their incorporation into project and linear structures of the functioning of the company is the individual choice of each of the suppliers. It is not possible to be able to report the project to the customer systematically and not to have developed and used sufficiently advanced system for project management. The goal of the system is to be able to get over the demands placed on the project within the frame of internally assigned sources of the company, to solve the conflicts with other projects related to the need of resources or their unavailability because of other reasons.

Individual tools and their use in relation to the involvement into the project is represented in following picture. It describes the preparation phase when the supplier applies for the nomination at the customer. MS Project is integration tool for both sides at this phase. There are key milestones and individual parts of the project in it which are the subject of offers. After acquiring of the nomination of separate parts of the project, the project is planned into MS Project internally because of the creation of basic capa planning of machine and technological capacities. After the basic and preliminary confirmation of the nominations MSP is internally scheduled in detail to have required level. Simultaneously due to the administration of hundreds and thousands of notifications there is created a transparent tool and environment of project reporting for all the involved workers and owners (share holders) a new project plan is integrated in MSP into the Sharepoint environment. This tool mediates basic information about the individual tasks for the whole group of involved workers and

owners, therefore also employees who do not have MS Project at disposal. Sharepoint deals with task scheduler, notification, reporting, graphical presentation extension and the system of task cancelling for involved team of unlimited size. At this phase the MS project file is owned and actualized only by the project manager or his administrator.

After the project initiation there comes a phase where the state of the project is reported to the customer on his portal. It is usually MSP or RPlan in the case of the latest projects. At this time the project manager is responsible for reporting of the state of the project with the periodicity of 1 week. If there is other tool used internally the project manager's duty is to keep both systems synchronized. There are possible tools for automatic synchronisation, however effort to control automatic tool requires nearly as much effort as manual actualization in two systems. There are used rather control automatisation tools which only signallize status divergence of both systems.

Technical parts of the project, administration of CAD data are generally resolved by NX platform (Siemens) or Catia (Dassault) and data administration over them Enovia or SmarTeam. This part is pretty separately included into the overall integrated system of project management.



Block scheme for build solution :

Figure 10 – Platforms of project management tools

3.5 The grade of internal integration of several project management system

How does it actually work then? On the following pages there is the genesis of procedure and continuity of the preparation, planning, realization, notification, reporting and projects tasks amendments projects.

Solution description

The customer specifies his key terms (SOP) in MS project file and structure of the main milestone project. Generally it is a start of choice of suppliers and division of individual component parts and components between them. Basic master MS Project file is generally defined by the customer and individual suppliers compete to have its partial parts



Figure 11 – Microsoft project GUI

After that separate component parts and configurations are scheduled in Excel into individual calendar weeks (KWT) for the whole project duration.

SÚBOR *	DOMOV VLOŽIT ROZLOŽENI	E STRANY	VZORCE	ÚDAJE	REVÍZIA	ZOBRAZI	Termi T	nschiene MAN	/ KW07 2014	lələx (iba i	na ĉitanie] - E	Excel							7 Šuba Igor	E – ć	× ×
Prilepit Sd	Vystrihnúť Kopirovať * Kopirovať formát reiska o Pierr	10 - A - <u>Q</u> - <u>A</u>	· =	= 8	e en El Z	slomiť text účiť a centros	vier sat -	óbecné % 000 % Čislo	Pod form	mienené átovanie *	Formátovať ako tabuľku - šnjily	Styly buniek -	Viožiť Ods	trănit Formă	∑ Automa ↓ Vyplniť Vymaza	tický súčet = - C = - - 	Zoradit a Ni filtrovat - vyl	lijst a brat -			
BV344	• i × √ fx																				~
1 12 10 H	IJKL M	N O	PQR	STU	V W X Y Z	AAAEACACAE/	FAGAHALAJ	AKALAMANAC	AFAÇARASA	(alavaya)	AYAZBABEBC	BCBEBFBG	8+8i BJBK8i	BABABCBFB	CBRBSBTBL <mark>RIV</mark> E	WBXBYBZCAC	ECCCDCECFC	a-a cicicia	CNONCCOP	CORCECTO	1.04
11					Guss	tion		SWZ-Tel Note 3	le .		EM No	kzeugfali ole 3 (mail	lendes Teil Lich Note 3								
15 17 18					WkzgA Absiche	idertigung ungs-WZ		Note 1	gverlagen	ing	EM No	ote 1 (mail nt Note 1	Llich Note 1	Oberfläch	e Note 3) Her	te 7					1
20		Statu	s 1.	13	2.13 3.	13 4. 13	5.13	6.13	7.13	8.13	9.13	10.13	11.13	12.13	1.14 2.1	4 3.14	4.14	5.14	6.14	7.14 8	. 14
21 23 24 25 26	100 10 families 2017 2018	VFF FV3	0-5					<u> </u>	<u> </u>		00004				TBT VEF		T	BT PVS	0.000	~~~	
27 28 29	12 Basine Status Taribated MML MIC NOT 4	F																			
31 32	Cardingso Tennersonal-Labor data	F										2				m					
34	Contrage Mile	F													. m	111					
37	Transmist (1775 million	F												1	M	w					
40	3.76 Televaluedurg 7 Nodes	F													ana						
43	Numer Index Verderind	F														mm					
46 47	1.100 Discussioning 7 Holloc Math. MIL 200-0	F													24	1111					
49	New York, March 1997	Ħ											8								
< >	Terminplan (+)											3.4	-								3
PILPILAVEN	e o = e e	1 1												Adresa			~ 0	00 10 - 7 - Pet	1.17.4	ENG 1	80 % 19:43

Figure 12 – Sample timetable chart for components delivery

As a result for each of the component parts there is separately monitored component part / configuration which together with tool production create a separate project within the frame of the whole project program (new model of automobile).

Excel or other more sophisticated solutions like MS Project or R-Plan tools are alternately used for monitoring of these terms.



Figure 13 – Screenshot from Actano RPlan

At the same time the monitoring of tool production and cooperation is realized in separate files, most often with the use of Excel due to the coordination of usually Asian suppliers who are not very well-experienced in the field of certification and deployment of the quality systems.

	5.	e - 🗄 🖻 - 🖘				April	(f One of	troje pre sh	ipping v CW0	7.xls [režim	kompatib	ility] - Excel						7	E - 8 X
Normál	R DON	AOV VLOŽIT ROZLOŽ žka Rozloženie Vlastné v strán strany zobrazen ibrazenia zošitov	ENIE STRAN Pravit Mriež	VZORCE	UDAJE REVIZIA prcov Q 100% Lupa 100%	ZOBRAZIT Zvačšiť N výber o	ové Usporial kno vietki	dať Ukotviť o priečky	Clark	CD Zobra III Synch III Obno	ziť súbeži rónne pos ríť poziciu	ne ovanie Preprut okná *	Makrá Makrá					Suba Igor	, Ing. PhD. *
A1				ols for shipping	Ng														~
1	В	Aug 17 - 1		hipping	1	c p	H lan	I	J	K	L	1	8	0	P	Q	R	S	T .
2		Part Nordber	Prasa in Metador	Part Picture	data status	BUYOFF	SHIPPING	CW03 China Q- status	shipping from t-shop possible	announced change	time for change (CW)	poznámka							
3			Fager 100		Tel00412.04.2013	COX48	CW 51	ок	CW07										
2	bu	4940 802 185/186	10.04		1600172001	C1748	CW02/2014	ок	CW07	TM002	10								
3	Tooli	4980 812 828	35.248	\$	19000	CUMAS	CW 51	ок	CW07										
4	AS	4940 813 545	80.018	\diamond	TMON	Citras	CW 51	ок	CW07										
7 5			10.00		196005	C1948	CW 61	ок	CW07										
6	2	4940.001.7911782	Page 10		1810/201	CW48	CW02	ок	CW07										
9 7	0	4940.001.348	Fager 138	1	1811/207	0-04(03	CW02	ок	CW07	TM002	4								
10 8	sionto	49865.0275.7985A	1000	4	T2003/14004 with becagered hele	G-04/02	CW05	ок	CW07										
9	Vis	amonta at the Paralog		-	1200110001	G-04/02	CW05	ок	CW07								1.4		
PRPRAV	IENI 🗄	()																-	+ 75 %
-	e	0 🔝 💷		0 2									Adresa				0	• 1 🕀 🚺	ENG 20:01

Figure 14 – Screenshot Time plane for delivery of tools components

Overall scope of the project is monitored in superordinate system. Generally it is MS Project file due to the transparency and clear intelligibility of the overview of the state of the fulfilment of goals, in some projects they relied on the at this time less-used R-Plan. The result in case of both systems is principally the same - it presents overall view of the state in which are individual configurations as well as the project state as a whole.

This philosophy of project monitoring and the choice of reporting tool is strongly-dependent on key project manager and not on the standards of the firm, as it would seem at first sight and as would be expected from multinational corporations. It is not unusual that in the course of the project life-cycle the focus on the importance of individual management and reporting tools of given big project is changed depending on the person leading the project. In the case of new extensive platform projects there are used several different systems at the same time depending on the point of view of customer's acceptance unit. E.g. planning prefers different tool than the development or procurement department in the case of the same project. It is not unusual that the supplier is able to trace also partial internal rivalry between these units in standardizing of the project monitoring platform of the whole firm within the frame of customer's alliance.

Communication matrix in large project :



Figure 15 – Project communication matrix

3.6 Restrictions of different business types

Another factor that cannot be overlooked for the project management tools integration in the group of more suppliers' companies is the diversity of individual projects especially from the point of view of project type and length of its life cycle. It is not a rare situation when one big OEM nominates simultaneously the same supplier for the supply of the developmental work, tool production for molded component parts, supply of molded and welded component parts as well as the supply of robotized automatic lines for the assembly line. Each from these supplies – project has completely autonomous and independent life-cycle, not dependent on other projects, despite the fact that it uses the same model and for the same OEM. They have only SOP and some imperfections in common (the term of the debugged tool overlaps with the supply term of test component parts for the prototype etc.). Some projects last 3 months, some 18 months and some 60 months. Harmonization of sources requirements is difficult already under laboratory conditions, which never exist in reality and in constantly-changing terms of the customer, what was proved also by the research realized among the project managers.

The situation is rather complicated when these projects are realized by one supplier in one big factory. When we add the complexity of the organization and coordination of several factories in different states with various firm and mental differences, we have the issue itself which has to be solved. We have several levels of the need of synchronization, unification and coordination of the project tasks, and we did not pass the line toward the customer yet.

The goal of project management TODAY is managing of all these requirements in the customer-given time with the use of reliable and tested tools of project management. Today the goal of project management is not to use standard tools and to observe project management methodology but the ability to flexibly model the use of all tools in given time and quality. The costs of projects, until recently the main bone of contention, is receding into the background at present and there dominates the ability of supplier to orient in customer's requirements and observe his needs without the failure of management and quality parameters.

3.7 Overload of sources - ways of elimination

How to optimize the load / overload of sources?

After the crisis and revitalization of reduced Automotive structures OEM and suppliers survived in a good cleansed condition. With structures flexible enough, accrued capital but together with one short-coming – the same human resources. The crisis did not change the division of the powers neither the abilities of managers to orientate in the whirl of changes in the field of Automotive. More or less the same leaders stayed in their seats on the positions of big corporations. It is understandable that the mortgage crisis caused the origin of global economic crisis on one hand, but its starter was not the Automotive industry however. On the contrary, together with the electronic industry it was one of the starters of its recovery. Quick ability to restructure the sources and shortening of the time of change and release of a new model on the market was the way out of the crisis. As a result the only source which Automotive structures were not able to operatively and sufficiently dynamically change are human professionally proficient resources. How to solve the problem of the overload of key employees of the company in the case of decisive project for the supplier then?

Push the term of his engagement on the project on the right side or realize workload of given employee across all the projects and start to coordinate his load with other project managers?



3.8 People utilization optimization - draft of solution

Figure 16 – Screenshot MSP result of utilization source

Neither of these textbook possibilities is real in contemporary world.

The most realistic scenarios:

- Agreements with the customer on the mutual modifications and acceptable balancing of individual parts of the project in relation to real distribution of the sources. The source of the motivation of this solution is understanding of the fact, that with the ignorance of the sources overload not only the supplier but also the customer will not be able to do their work in time. He unconsciously or deliberately counts on it and therefore he keeps the term reserve on his side. Thereby he shortens the real time for the realization of the needed works in the project from the side of the supplier and gets him under the groundless pressure and overloads his sources already at the level of the project planning. Paradoxically for these security reasons it causes delay of individual tasks planned by the customer, not planned in the case of the supplier.
- Not to integrate given employee into the project because his planning in critical inaccessible time will nevertheless bring expected project result. Despite all

the rational arguments and recommendations for the methodology, this method is not applied, as far as proficiency, experience from previous projects are irreplaceable arguments for the nomination of substitutes or not involved colleagues. Typical situation is that of the welding engineer for example, whose uniqueness is given by his competence resulting from his position. It is rather impossible for the supplier to realize more extensive project of the supply of molded and welded configurations for Automotive without his participation.

 To leave overloaded sources in their original planning – permanent delay of ALL project-dependent tasks. In this case it is already the resignation of project managers who get into this situation and they do not make the use of other possibility or have no competence to change given situation. The result – demotivated project manager but also whole project team.

Based on the experience, unfortunately, we have to state that the last possibility occurs unplanned the most frequently in real life in Automotive.

4 PROPOSED SOLUTION - SUPPORTING TOOLS OF PM IN HYBRID ENVIRONMENT

In order to provide all the customers' requirements, internal integration requirements, reporting, notifications, project planning requirements we came to integrated quadratic solution of 4 basic tools. Their mutual integration and usage in corresponding phases of the project has proved to be a model able to absorb changing requirements of the customers and eliminate the impact of delayed terms with regard to originally-planned sources.

Schematic representation of the interconnection between the tools is represented in the following picture:



Final supplier solution :

Figure 17 – Tier 1 supplier - final platforms solution

Individual tools realize following key operations in given life-cycle of the project: MS Project :

- Build master schedules
- Assign resources
- Create budget

SharePoint

- Communicate tasks
- Share project status
- Track scheduling
- Issues
- Reports

R-Plan

- Customer demand
- Master scheduling
- Supplier status reports

Enovia / SmarTeam

- PLM
- PDM
- Technical solutions

Draft solution :

MS Project with its master plan remains the only praised program for the project manager, because of the ties it is integratedly included into the Sharepoint. After its integration project manager is the only one who can update given tasks and their attributes whether in Sharepoint or directly in MS Project directly installed in it. After saving of the change in any of these tools, interconnections are automatically actualized into the other environment and automatically without any human intervention they are actualized and all the notifications about the modification of all tasks on which the realized change had impact are sent.

This is the result of integrated environment, which we created in the significantly diversified environment of Tier 1 supplier and which helps us to deal with today's not easy situation in which we find ourselves as the supplier in the course of supply into OEM automobiles

5 MODEL IMPLEMENTATION - SW SUPPORT REALISATION TOOLS (EXPERIMENTAL SECTION)

We used a transparent tool which is available for all employees – Sharepoint for internal integration of all projects their scheduling, notification of all involved employees. It is a tool which is integrated into the systems of the firms which is able to collect data from ERP systems, MS Project systems and with the use of its own tools or Intranet portal it is able to make them available for employees. At the same time we decided for its usage because of the workflow facility for the notification of on-coming, on-going and not completed tasks, for commenting and cancellation of not completed tasks directly in the Sharepoint or Outlook environment (our decision has passed after the approval of project manager or Sharepoint administrator and not by the Outlook user with the use of Task).

The integration itself is based on the native functionality of SharePoint Enterprise on the server and its ability to integrate into itself the tasks from MS Project Pro. With Partial Add-on solution for the automation of the integration we assured "link" of finished MS Project plan into the environment of integrated Sharepoint of the whole firm.

5.1 Tools for planning

The customer specifies his key terms (SOP) in MS project file and structure of the main milestone and all project tasks. In first order customer creates a Master plan of project in MS Project format.

	1		5	0.0	1 - Tamponi Rohympp - Project Profess NASTROM GAN	TTOVHO GRAFU		× _ D 3	¢.				- 6 ×
C O D http://srvs	pt/holdi S	ÚBOR	01	OHA 7	ZDROJ ZOSTAVA PROJEKT ZOBRAZIT FOR	TAM	Suba Igor	ing. PhD 🖍 🗗 1	<				
SharePoint MOMSE TASKS UST	• Strar Gi Zol	anttov praf *	Prile	pit vieka	Calibri - 11 - T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T	Automaticky naplánovať Úlohy	Viožiť info	rmácie 🙀 Úpravy Mastrosti			Newslend OneDrive	Stes Subatgo	и, Ing. PHD. + Ф ?
	y Vien - 18 column - 18			3H LA M	Synchronizácia so z	oznamom úlo	h	×					
Edit Ven Lang	Access Vie V		24	-	Priebeh:			a horas					
Home			Parts	(254	Altualizaje sa SharePoint a Project			2010					-
Knižnice	Sterl								÷		0000# 2714		Finish
Zdielané dokumenty	1646		0	Režim		-							18-október
Otvary	~	110	0	alohy	Task Name Plán nástuncov / Individual Development Plan	Trvanie A24 doi	 Začiatok Ro 19 5 14 	 Dokončenie - F - Ni Št 31 12 15 					
Zocrumy	(+)	2	~	*	 Plánovanie projektu 	23 doi	Po 17.2.14	Str 19.3.14					
Kalendår	Viet B	3	1	*	Definovanie cieľov projektu	6 dni	Po 17.2.14	Po 24.2.14					
Najnovlie	~ 0110	4	1	*	Definovanie złożenia riadiaceho výboru	6 dni	Po 17.2.14	Po 24.2.14		Due Data	Assigned To	Start Date	Task Status
Olohy	3	5	× .	*	Definovanie zloženia výkonného výboru	6 dhi	Pi 28.2.14	Pi 7.3.14		27.februára	Margalinal Inge. Ing.	27.februára	Completed
/ EDIT LINKS		6	~	*	Definovanie pracovných balikov projektu	6 dhi	Po 17.2.14	Po 24.2.14		31 decembra, 2015		19.mája	Not
		7	*	*	Určenie nástrojov používaných v projekte	6 dni	Po 17.2.14	Po 24.2.14					Started
		8	*	*	Vypracovanie roadmapy projektu	7 dni	Pi 28.2.14	Po 10.3.14	***	19 marca	: Margalizati tega, tega	17.februára	Completed
		4	4	*	Zadanie WRS na intranet	6 doi	Ser 12 3 14	Gr 10 3 14		34.februára	C. Kells Martin, Jug.	17.Jebruára	Completed
	10	PRIN	NÉ	POUZ	Y AUTOMATICKÝ FILTER 🚽 🖈 NOVÉ ÚLOHY : MANJÁLNE NAPLÁNOVA	NÉ ES SE	880			24.februára	12 Keller Hillardin, Song.	17.februára	Completed
	1	2		Delinova	nie złożenia výkonnáho výboru				-	7.marca	C Kein Intertity, Imp.	20.februára	Completed
		2		Delinova	inie pracovných balikov projektu					24.februára	C Margalinei Inge, Ing.	17.februára	Completed
		2		La Cenie I	nástrolov používaních v projekte					34.februára	C Despaired type ing.	17.februára	Completed
		2		Managaria	unie madmanu projektu					10.marca	C Discussional impactions	20.februára	Completed
					NRV an interest					19 marca	Concerns one state	12 mains	Consisted
					and the more states					10.000	C start provide the	Terrore to	Completed
	4	8		Vy0voren	oe pristupiou na vytvorenom adresan senara pre Genou KV/VV					10/marca	. Insumarya, sepa	7.marca	Competed
	1	2		Stanover	nie stretnutí výborov projektu				***	11.marca	Hargalised Inge, Ing.	3.marca	Completed
	1	2		Ratover	nie komunikačného plánu projektu				***	14.marca	C Colograd Landa, Ing.	7.marca	Completed
	1	2		Schuälen	ve projektu					27.februára	🗆 Kole Interfet, Ing.	27 februára	Completed
	1	2		Podpicar	nie zadlikacieho listu projektu					12.marca	C Rosen Barlay, Don reg. Phil. Mar.	28.februára	Completed v
11 - 6 0	05			a 12					6	Adresa	× C	- Pr 18 12	ENG 2159

Figure 18 – Integration of MS Project into SharePoint

5.2 Tools for Tasks scheduler

Consequently we acquire a complete list of individual tasks with all the needed attributes for the monitoring of Sharepoint.

arePoint							
					News	feed OneDrive	Site Subalgor, Ing. PhD.+ Ø
WSE TASKS UST							Q trute ♀ sorrow
	e Column Vietly John		Tarm Web Farts -				
Edit View Navig	prie Up < 1 - 100 Manage Views	Notes Unit Mer, Neet Projet Outlook Dool Form Cot Toot and Notes Share & Toot Convert & Entert Convert & Entert	New Quick Step Settings With Settings -				
ne nice		sugurt 2014	september 2014.		distiller 2014		
diefani dokumenty	Start		Add tasks with dates to the timeline				Finish
kpisy z porád							
Y .	(new tas	k or edit this list					
wry Glerdêr	Vietky (Johy	BEllaci sa termin spinenia Ganttov graf 🚥 🏳 Find an Item 🔎					
ovšie	- 5k	Task Nerve		Due Date	Angest 14	Start Date	Task Instan
lohy	2	Schvälania projektu		27.februára	The print logs, but	27.februára	Completed
DIT LINKS		Plán néstupcov / Individual Development Plan		31.decembra, 2015		19.mája	Not Started
	2	* Planovanie projektu		15.текса	Margalizati Inge, Ing.	17.februára	Completed
	2	Definovania ciellov projektu		24.februára	Tale Harts, Ing.	17.5ebruára	Completed
		Definovanie alubenia riadiaceho výkoru		24.februára	C. Kele Martin, Joy	17.februára	Completed
	521	Definovanie zloženia výkonného výboru		++ 7.marca	. And Martin, hep-	28.februára	Completed
	2	Definitivaria practivných balilite projektu		··· 24.februára	Margalized Inge, Str.	17.februára	Completed
	\mathbb{R}	Určania nástrojov používaných v projekte		24.februára	Morgalized Supr. Ing.	17.5ebruára	Completed
		Vypracovanie roadmapy projektu		···· 10.marca	Displaced logit, logit	28.februára	Completed
	2	Zadania W85 na intranet		···· 19.marca	Salaripe, hig 262.	12.marca	Completed
	2	Vytvoranie pristupov na vytvorenom adrecári servna pre členov RV/MV		10.marca	True Tatalya, MEA	7.marca	Completed
	120	Stanovenie stretnuti výborov projektu		··· 11.marca	Margalizza Inge, Ing.	3.marca	Completed
	2	Stanovenie komunikačného plánu projektu		··· 34.marca	Compact Looks, Ing.	7.marca	Completed
	2	Schutilenie projektu		27.februára	Internation, Imp.	27.5ebruára	Completed
	2	Podpisanie zadávocieho listu projektu		··· 12.marca	Annu John, Doi 11g Mill, Mill	28/ebruára	Completed
	1	Definovanie ciefov projektu		24.februára	Morphissi Inga, Ing.	17.februára	Completed
	2	Defrave		Maria		17.februára	Completed

Figure 19 – Sharepoint tasks list screenshot

5.3 Nitificatrion tools

In the attached picture there is a list of project tasks, integrated link from MS Project and displayed in Sharepoint (web browser Internet Explorer). Each task has clear begining, end, name of responsible person and task description.

Sharebolit Note of lack Oracle Column Sharebolity (light (lig	🛉 • 🔄 • 🖃 👼 • Strana • 8	ezpečni	osť • Nástro	oje 🕶 I	6 •節昭										
Note: Note: Operation Operat	SharePoint										Newsfeed	OneDrive Sites Sub	a Igor, Ing. PhE	o @ ?	
Offendy Image: Tel Paymenders Province Reader Reader <threadr< th=""> <threadr< th=""> <threadr< t<="" th=""><th>BROWSE PAGE</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>Q SHARE</th><th>Follow</th><th>G sinc (q)</th><th></th></threadr<></threadr<></threadr<>	BROWSE PAGE											Q SHARE	Follow	G sinc (q)	
Zonary 1.1.3 extension Mathematic Network Mathe	Útvary 👻	• 0	Číslo úlohy		Nadpis		Test	Popis riešenia	Priradené	Terrin spineria	% hotovo	Stav úlohy Predchodca	Termin preložen	~ ^	
Out-off 13 and 352.28 - 228 Subject Subject Subject Subject 55 % Fre Fre <t< td=""><td>Zoznamy</td><td></td><td>1.1.1.1</td><td>D</td><td>4040.803.053</td><td>-</td><td>Boden hirten VT (MALHELDSI)</td><td></td><td>11 Stoke hard</td><td>3542013</td><td>100 %</td><td>Dokončené</td><td>20.6.2013</td><td></td><td></td></t<>	Zoznamy		1.1.1.1	D	4040.803.053	-	Boden hirten VT (MALHELDSI)		11 Stoke hard	3542013	100 %	Dokončené	20.6.2013		
1.3.1 Instance Distribute - Distribute Description Distribute Statistics, Sp. 24,214 S7.6 Pro - Distribute Distribute - Distribit - Distrib	Kalendár Úlohy		1.1	D	4545,302,069	-	253 Boden Ninten Vordertiell (4645.052.000)		🗇 Boltovský Vladinsk, trip	2.6.2014	55 %	Pre	p:// sp /holding	g/projekt shy/EditFo	rm.aspx? 🔎 = 🖒
V DD10005 111112 Manual drogwy (m) Manual drogwy (m) 100 Labbies	e manual		1.1.1		Engeltaile		Exastale		🗆 Robovský Vladirsk, troj	2.6.2014	57 %	Pre 🟠 • 🔊 - 🖃	📾 🕶 Str	ana • Bezpečnosť • Nástroje •	a. 10 m
13.3.3.3 balance in true (inclusion) State subgroupped (inclusion) State subgrouped (inclusion) State subgroup	/ EDIT DINKS		1.1.1.1.12	D	Material-Engang (Stahlpuss, Grauguss)	-	Material-Organg (Stabigues, Georgens)		C 10th Ladiales, Ing.	167,2013	100 %	Do Starebaid			CJ
111113 metabolishing integration metabolishing integration States and states States and states States and states States integration States integra			1.1.1.1.13		Kauftelle im Haut (flag: Großheile, Schieber)		Kauftelle im Haus (Bip. Großbelle, Schieber)	50% ruliuproarych dielov je na zavidnich	🗇 Hellowký Aroj, Ing.	23.8.2013	100 %	Do Land and Area		1 19 19	
1.3.1.16 excelorationage long phC Each stand 1.8.2.013 Tools Do Date (part) Each stand) Tools Date (part) Each stand) Each stand) Tools Date (part) Each stand) Tools Date (part) Each stand) Each stand) Each stand) Each stand) Tools Date (part) Each stand) Each stand) Each stand) Each stand) Each stand) Each stand)<		,	1.1.1.1.15	D	4440.001.053	-	Grundbearbeitung kertig (NC- Felsen 20) - Boden binten VT (MALMILES)		Sinke Josef	\$8200	100 %	Doi Hume Richine Zoleland dokumenty	Civo Liuty* Hadpa *	1.1.1.1.1 Meerial Diging Contigues, Designed	
1111118 Indextent Wag, Addas Serig 10 Ende Net 1112113 24 % Per Annual Series 111118 Indextent Wag, Addas Serig 10 Ende Net 1112113 24 % Per Annual Series 111119 IndextEnt Wag, Addas Series 10 Ender Netwin, Nag. 1112113 24 % Per Annual Series 111119 IndextEnt Wag, Addas Series 11 Ender Netwin, Nag. 11 Ender Netwin, Nag. 11 Ender Netwin, Nag. 11 Ender Netwin, Nag. Nag. Delaway 111119 Intertextee Typest Waden Series 11 Ender Netwin, Nag. Nag. Delaway 111119 Intertextee Intertextee Ender Netwin, Nag. 11 Ender Netwin, Nag. 11 Ender Netwin, Nag. 11 Ender Netwin, Nag. Nag. Delaway 111119 Intertextee Intertextee Ender Netwin, Nag. 11 Ender Netwin, N			1.1.1.1.16	D	4440301203	-	Formbearbeitung fertig (NC- Folsen 30) - Boden hinten VT (4643.803.053)		12 Savke Josef	13.8.2913	100 %	Doi Zapity z porád útrazy Zszneny Korostár	fert	Mandal-Engang (Sahigun, Grangun)	
1111118 0 0001801203			1.1.1.1.18		Barkatheit Wog- Auffani hetig	-	Tankarbeit Wag - Auflans fertig		C Stoke Josef	1112018	28 %	Pre drawy			
1.11.1.19 definitions			1.1.1.1.18		440301253	-	Bankacheit Wigg- Auftaac fertig - Boden hinten VT		El Bernith Vistki, Ing.	111200	28 %	Pre			
1.1.1.1 D. MARINERS			1.1.1.19	٥	440.001.013	-	Trynut Wiekzmag in Presse (Unterfielerant) - Boden hinten VT		C Bendth Viatko, Ing	6112013		Net	Cell Bony		
1.1.1.2 Development of the second sec			1.1.1.1.3	۵	4640.000.053	-	Bautolpr (f, Nerstellbark, (Simulationeachuais) Methode (4643.813.153)		C Stoke hard	3.72013	100 %	Do	Zadania Geny *	Material Eingang (Stahigues, Grauguss)	
			1.1.1.2		4545.852.135		Querträger mitte (4040.802.111)		12 Yoth Ladislaw, Imp.	2.62014	47 %	Pre			
1.1.12.35 D methods and the set of the set o			1.1.1.2.35		Bemusterungstell	-	Semularungstel Note3		🗇 Bernaldh Voetlan, Ing.	6.12.2013		Ne	Proma	(3 Normaline (9)	
tau dany Deseteré 💌				-	Noted							224	Stav Goty	Dokondené	
		-	1.1.1.2.36	0	TET PVS (DRC Note 3)	-	T81 PV5 (5H7, Netri 2)		C Bendih Visiko, Ing	23.12.2013		NE	S hotova	100	

User is notified about each him allocated, on-coming, on-going or not completed task by the email notification with a concrete link from Sharepoint for given task with the description of basic status of the task (it comes on, it is going on, it is not completed).

			ng Mines	To Manager	1			learth People	8				
New New Email Berns - 2	Junk- Drine	Reply Reply Forward Tig Meet	· Q. Reply & Dave	V Creste New	a Move Rule	OneNote Unread	Categoriae Follow	Title Enal	Ziplend				
A favorites	H 5 C	• • 8 •		You have secon	shilly created as allest	har Walty		(escape (HTML)			7 00 - 0	×	
Oreneed Mail Sent Barris	Balgeore X	A Constant Constant Street	Minta D Trave Drait D Reply & Delete	Constantiation	B Could Move (1) Actor	inter Inter Inter Inter Unread	orice Follow Up -	He Find D Related - D: Select -	Q				
+ Index - Archiv_Privat Draftz Sent Items Dated Items	You bestor. In the	* access repoint@ have successfully created a	matador-grou n alert for 'Olohy: I	p.eu> loden hir ^{ten (1)} ste	0.001/05/2								
Concentration 8		CONCERNS OF	a successfully b	een addec									
Conversation 1 Infected Berry Infected Berry Infected Berry Outbox I Search Folders	Alert 'Qohy: Bod You will receive : You can change	en hellen VI Ilerts according to the delivi this alert or any of your oth	er alerts on the <u>Hy</u>	and oriteria that we Alerts on this Site p	e selected when i age.	he alert was crea	ated.						
Conversation 4 Johnshold Iana Johnshold Ia Josef Fraul Outbox Johnson Johnson HolpDanis HolpDanis HolpDanis SantoColl Search Fulders	Alert '(Johy: Bod You will receive J You can change	en helden VT	ery method, timing a er allerts on the <u>Hy</u>	Alerta on this Site p	e selected when i age.	the allert was crea	ned. Radhaus N. Abschi	untel (440 209 3	156) - Kanstruktion ferlig	- Task		7 00	- ¤ ×
Connectedant Roma Informatine Roma Johnmachel Roma Johnmachel Roma Josephinik Dobbie Beanch Foldens All Dobbie Hill Dob Search Foldens All DOPS Search Foldens	Alert "(Aoliy: Bod You xill receive J You can change l	en notes v1	ry method, timing a er alerts on the thy FLE To Save & Delete Close A	Alerta on this Site p	CORMAT TEXT	the allert was creat REVIEW Mark Ansign Sen Mange Taxk R	Radhaus In: Abooth Status Status port Recurrent Recurrent Recurrent	united (AMI) 209.3	106) - Konstruktion firstig Color - Konstruktion firstig Color - Color - Color Tage - Color - Color Tage - Col	- Task or zoon zoon		7 00	- ¤ x
Committee I Defacts Bann Information I Avan E-mail Outloor I Seech Fallen Al-Did Seech Fallen Al-Did Seech Fallen Al-Did Seech Fallen Al-Did Seech Fallen	Alert Yoliy: Bod You xill receive J You can change	en neten vi	ery method, timing a er alerts on the type FLE 7 Save & Delete Claim A Overske hy	Advite on this Site p Advite on this Site p Site DODR'S I Forward Development 2 days.	In selected when age.	REVERN Ank Anign Sen Manage Task	Rathau N. Aloch Statian Statian Recurrent Recurrent	Categorize Fi	Contruction fortig Contruction fortig Control of the second	- Taik ce zoom zoom		7 00	- 0 x
Committee I Defactablem Information I Jane Frend Aue Frend I Seech Fallen HespDed Hesp	Alert Yooliy: Boo	en neteor y	ery method, timing a er alerts on the type FLE To Save & Delate Claim Subject	Advite on this Site p Advite on this Site p Site DSDRT 1 Site DSDRT 1	COMACT TEXT	REVIEW REVIEW Jack Ansign Sen mplete Tark & Manage Tark struktion Terlig	Rathau Ni, Alocht Cathau Ni, Alocht Cathau Securrent Recurrent	untel (HAB 2002) Congosia: Fo	105) - Konstruktion fertig Composition George	- Task ce zoon Zoon		7 00	×
Committee I Defected Ismu Infernation I Jane E-mail Outside I Sanch Futane Outside I Sanch Futane I Obtained per Data Sanch Futane Other Sanch Futane Sanch Futane Other Sanch Futane Sanch Fut	Alert "(killy: Bol	en notace v1	ry method, timing J er alerts on the Hy FLE 3 Save & Delate Data Save & Delate Save at Delate Save at Delate Save at Delate	Alerta on this Site p Alerta on this Site p BODRT 1 Farmad Doublete East 2 days.	e sekcted whee i age. ORMAT IDOT Text Decan Inter Decan Inter Decan	He allert was created and the allert was created	Rathau hi Aboth Gan d San pool Recument Recument	untel (HAN 2002)	109) - Konstruktion fertig Market 1 High Proste 1 High Proster Tage	- Tesk ce zeom zeom		7 50	×

Figure 21 – MS Outlook notification email with task link

It is not the duplicity because the data are integrated and synchronized automatically in the background but in contrast to MS Project tools we needed to distribute and notificate assigned tasks via email to the hundreds of involved employees who do not dispone with the MS Project tool neither with its plan in their workstations.

In the case of need or other summarizing or reporting of tasks the list of tasks can be exported from MS Project or Sharepoint to Excel.

508	IOR DO	MOV VLOZIT ROZLOZENIE STRANY VZORCE UDAJE	REVIZIA ZOBRAZIT NAVRH					Suba Igor, Ing. PhD. *
Názo	v tabulky:	Ztrnúť s kontingenčnou tabuľkou 🚍 🗮	Vlastnosti	Riadok hlavičky Prvý stĺpec	Tlačidlo filtrovania			Concernent -
Tabe	fire owners	RECOMMENT Analysis	S D = committee and	E Riadok sikhs Destedai ofner				
1200	Ina_owssir	Wobit Export	tovať Obnoviť					
ΦZ	menit' velka	osť tabuľky 🖓 Konvertovať na rozsah rýchly filter -	 Caracteria Structure 	🕑 Pruhované riadky 🛄 Pruhované stipce			Andred Manager	
	viasteo	sti Nästroje	Externá údajová tabuľka	Śtył tabulky - możnost		Styly tabuliek		
A1		 I × ✓ fx Completed 						~
14	ompleter .	Task Name	Date Date -	ineral To		· Start Date · Tack Status	Item Type	• Path
46	FALSE	Stotožnenie sa zamestnancov s hodnotami skupiov cez al loterné tré	ningy social nosti b) inter 19.12.2	condicationer, inc. 45.4		14.7.2014 In Progress	Položka	holding/msprojects/Samola
47	FALSE	Lessons Learned	19.12.2014	indical Lindia, ing. 4775		22.9.2016 Not Started	Položka	holding/msorpiects/Sampia
42	TRUE	Odovadávanie znalostí	31.5.2010			17.3.2014 Completed	Pololka	holding /manpiests /Samois
49	TRUE	Priorava 1. workshopu pre TOP	21.5.2014 (in	apartical Landau #2015		7.4.2014 Completed	Pololka	holding/msprojects/Sample
50	TRUE	Prinrava prezentácie "nová marketingová stratégia"	95,2014	of Phenoise, M. Sc., Millio, 477		9.4.2014 Completed	Pololka	holding/msorojects/Sample
51	TRUE	Mola cesta k úspechu (s niekúm, kto patrí k TOP)	24.5.2014 MA	spalined burn, big. #14		1.4.2014 Completed	Poloika	holding/msproiects/Sample
52	TRUE	Organizačné zabaznečenie WS	22.5.2011 (m	approval London #1013		7.4.2014 Completed	Poloika	holding/msorolects/Samole
53	TRUE	Realizácia WS	24.5.2010 100	and Looks #703		23.5.2014 Completed	Položka	holding/msprojects/Sample
24	TRUF	Lessons Learned	10.5.2014 84	ing Indus ed. by Mar \$101		26.5.2014 Completed	Položka	holding/msorplects/Sample
55	TRUE	Informovanie o malizácii WS na intranete a v MAEx	31.5.2014 (54	intend (Judia, ing. #75)		19.5.2014 Completed	Polofke	holding/msprojects/Sampis
56	FALSE	MATADOR Management Development Programm	31.12.2010	and the second		31.3.2016 In Progress	Pololka	holding/mappiects/Sample
57	TRUF	Spracewania koncentu MATADOR MDP	5.5.2014 10	and not have been still		28.4.2014 Completed	Pološka	holding/monolects/Sample
5.0	TRUE	Oduiblasenie konceptu MATADOR MDP	20.5.2014	ing Status, Day, ing. Math. Mills, 4100.		5.5.2014 Completed	Položka	holding/msprojects/Sample
5.9	FALSE	Informovanie o koncente MATADOR MOP a) predstavenstvá spoložny	sti bi vedenia spoložnos 31.8.2010 m	sealerst here, her with		20.5.2014 in Progress	FoloBka	holding/msorpiects/Sample
#0	TAISE	Zanzarmuania METADOR MOP do internal lagislative apolo/mosti	11.8. Mild Co.	strend laste \$151		30.6.2014 Not Started	Palolka	holding/manpierts/Sampie
61	FALSE	Virualizácia MATADOR MOP (intranet, MAEx, info tabule)	31.12.2014	and a second secon		30.6.2014 Not Started	Pololka	holding (mspeciests /Sample
4.7	TRUF	Sumarinicia visiadiou hudootania zamestoancou za rok 2018 no kate	editach (TOP SMI THP 31.5 2011	annal Anna Milla		30.4.2014 Completed	Pololika	holding/monrolects/Samola
63	TRUF	Sumarizácia výsledkov hodpotenia zamestnancov za rok 2013 nore ka	tegórie VR a RR 15.7.2010 bill	Second Municipant #114 #Domatored Lon. Mar.	#592	9.6.2014 Completed	FoloNes	holding /msorpiects/Sampie
6.4	TRUE	Ventacevania management peofile ore TOP, SML a Mildowich rements	10.5.2014 M	mailed here he and		20.5.2014 Completed	Fololika	holding/msorpiacts/Sampis
15	TRUE	Verseevania olimu nistuocau ora paricia 102	18.7 2010 10	seadled have been \$14		21.5 2014 Completed	Ralolica	holding (menolects /Sample
66	TRUF	Venacevanie plana nástupcev pre posicie SMI	18.7.2014 10	contrast here. Inc. #14		21.5.2014 Completed	Položka	holding (manufacts / Samula
67	TIDILE	Venracevania alánu nástuncov pre klúžová posicia	18.7 2010 00	england from her stild		21.5 2014 Completed	Daloika	holding (meaniacts /Samol
6.0	FAISE	Odsiblasania oliansy nistureny	15.8.2014 84	a Martin Inc. 848		21.7.2014 Not Started	Položka	holding (magniacta /Sampia
14	EALSE	Ventaressale IDP ere lednotlisisch nästunsee	31.8 2014 10	england here for #14		28 7 2014 In Programs	Falalka	holding (manufacts /Samola
70	FALSE	Odsiblasenia IDP iednotlivich nästunov	31.8.2014 84	a Martin line ANI		18.8.2014 Not Started	Pololika	holding (msprojects/Samola
71	EALSE	Obomámenie něstupcov o prostreme MATADOR MOR	15.9.2014 88	sandined train free stild		25.8.2014 Not Started	Položka	holding (magniacts /Samoli
72	FALSE	T&D iednotlivých nástuncov - 1. etana	31.8.2010 000	Strengt Lands Will		1.9.2016 Not Started	Položka	holding (mannierts /Samoli
24	EALSE	T&D indextiliséeb mistureeu - 2. etans	31.8.20	and in the \$101		1.9.2015 Not Started	Balolica	holding/mencolects/Samole
74	CALCE	Hard conville on MATADOR MOR	12.0.200	continued here: here after		21.7.2014 In Programmer	Balolica	holding (mensionite Rampi
75	FALSE	Lassons Learned	31.8.2	interest librate from #15		28.7.2014 Not Started	Položka	holding (magniacta (Samoli
76	CALSE	Train the Trainer	11.12.200	CALIFORNIA CALIFORNIA		A 3 2014 to Program	Palaika	holding (managing to Barno)
77	TRUE	Sorecoverile knocentu Train the Trainer	30.5.2014 10	endowi here her stid		12.5.2014 Completed	Pololka	holding (magning to /Lampin
78	TRUE	Odsüblassenie konzentu Train the Trainer		the Souley Day log Mail, and state		23.6.2014 Completed	Balalka	holding (manaplects /Sample
79	TRUE	Určenie tém pre interných trénerov (technické, odbovné, saft skills)	16.5 2010 10	spational traje, log. #14		12.5.2014 Completed	Položka	holding/msprojects/Sample
80	TRUE	Určanje interných trénerov	19.5.2014	approved Landau #1015		12.5.2014 Completed	Položka	holding (manyolects/Sample
81	TRUE	Informačné stretnutia v spoločnostiach o koncepte	31.7.20	and Looks #201		23.6.2014 Consisted	Položka	holding/msprojects/Sample
82	TRUE	Stretnutie s internémi školiteľmi v spoločnostiach	15.8.2014	and banks with		16.6.2014 Completed	Pololka	holding /msorplacts/Sample
		= 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1 + 1	** * **	to a second			a 1 11	A A A
	P	OW35VI (+)			3 4			
HIPT	AVENÝ 🛅							+ as w
	-					Advera	0	10 11 d 110 110
1.1						VALUE V	0.000	ENG 2157

Figure 22 – Export of tasks from MS Project/Sharepoint to Excel.

5.4 Reporting

At the same time we have realized basic extension of online-generated graphic display and state of the completion of individual tasks, as well as central semaphor on the basis of agreed rules for the state of projects with one basic signal

The view on this dashboard of the project shows

Basic status according to set rules green / orange / red

Graphic representation of the tasks completed / on-going / delayed

Overview of individual categories of tasks in line aggregated note under the graph.



Figure 23 – Graphic report extension in Sharepoint

This will be the end of the overview of established solution. I described mutual interconnections, system synchronizations and I pictured user-interface environment for team members.

5.5 Customer internal interface engine

As the customer controls term plans in him-fitting environment within a group, which is not master project plan in MS Project, but in RPlan environment instead, the customer has to keep the integrity of the data reported into both systems. The state of separate tasks is reported into RPlan via the customer Interface, in MS Project overall state of the project is declared with the emphasis on the disponibility of sources in capa planning. It is not duplicity or contradiction in reporting, big corporations deal with tens of projects, overlapping of several models and in the case of such great extent of coordinations, little deviations in the functionality of individual tools are reflected in decision-making process, on which part of monitored data can be used which tool within the scope of corporate projects.

There has been created an integrated tool for reporting of the state of reported terms in customer's RPlan. The data are linked online and it is displayed in flash form on the level of signals, the state of terms of individual parts and discrete number of separate tasks with the expression of delay in this tool

RPlan	status								x
		 Delay	<5d	<10d	<15d	>15d	Status D	ate	
AND AVE.	TBT SOP		31	48	19	38	24-10-13	11:10:44;	Log
Sector.	TBT SOP		31	48	19	38	24-10-13	11:10:44;	Log
881	TBT SOP		21	20	11	87	29-10-13	23:43:49;	Log
187	TBT SOP		4	24	6	12	29-10-13	19:49:59;	Log
188	TBT SOP		4	24	6	12	29-10-13	19:49:59;	Log
239	TBT SOP		18	39	10	58	28-10-13	15:16:43;	Log
248	TBT SOP		18	39	10	58	28-10-13	15:16:43;	Log
408	TBT SOP		30	13	2	23	28-10-13	12:30:43;	Log
408	TBT SOP		34	17	4	23	28-10-13	13:26:18;	Log
985	TBT SOP		22	23	35	53	28-10-13	08:58:58;	Log
	Start Close			<u>A</u>	Mat	ado	or [Total Log	

Figure 24 – Graphic status of tasks deadline from RPlan

5.6 PM integration into a management structures

How to incorporate properly and especially on the long-term basis project management into line management structures which are still prevalent in the management with their line structures and methods in todays hectic time in the field of Automotive in Europe?

Complexity of the implementation lies in personal involvement of top representatives of the supplier's company. Other, traditional manager tools and procedures cannot be successful in long-term conflict solution among overdesigned resource requirements. Today none of the projects can be said to be less important and has to give away its requirements to leave the space for more important projects. In the majority of cases several parallel projects are nevertheless by the same sponsor – the customer. Consequently the suppression of the realization of some of them will cause problem with the same customer anyway, he will overlook our success

in the case of the most important project because we have endangered his interests and plans in other part of his projects.

At the same time the suppression of "secondary" projects into the level of export of the work to the cooperation with external supplier sharply increases quality guarantee and stability of terms, it increases minimal linear costs for the provision of term and quality timeliness and from the economic point of view we export the money out of the company and do not utilize our own sources. In the final result it makes the results of the company worse which the project won in hard fights. As firms are administered and evaluated by the means of line management models, in the case of year evaluation this type of situation increases the pressure on the elimination of dominance of main projects at the expense of others because in the final accounting this way shows to be not very optimal from the point of view of results of own firm. It is only investment into the future because key projects create the base for the future periods and in the case of OEM producers they are nominations for the supply in the horizon of several years for given model, which we as a supplier successfully completed and we passed in the nomination of the supply of component parts for serial production.

6 MODEL FINALLY IMPLEMENTATION

The model has been developed and constructed in real conditions and environment of a system supplier to Automotive. Its construction involved more than 12 projects for four car producers as well as opinions and requirements of more than 20 project managers. The implementation itself consisted of analytical part of customer needs, analysis of project managers' needs, system possibilities, communication chanels with customers, degree of literacy of all people involved in the projects and integration possibilities of software tools.

The solution is under constant changes and optimalization, mostly integration of different customer systems and interface to their reporting tools. The result is a solution used in several automotive companies with different types of supplies for car producers.

6.1 Theoretical benefits

In my opinion, theoretical benefit is a detailed analysis of existing tools, honestly saying that none of existing and used tools is universal and able to accommodate and solve all requirements for project managers in present conditions. Many of the authors quoted have a similar opinion, describing the situation from a marginal view "rodeo" to a theory of chaos that should be used in the present project management world.

6.2 Practical Benefits

Practical benefit is a new combination of existing tools in project management into a different form, trying to create elastic structure able to absorb today's dynamic requirements of customers and project managers. The result of this solution is not a new software product. It is a new, unique software tool, formed by MS Project basic platforms and Sharepoint and many included models providing required elasticity and functionality. Analogy with existing platform and modularity of cars design and production is not a mere coincidence. This analogy sends a clear message and thus I do not consider the result of my work to be a coincidence. The concept of software tool on PM copies development and trends in existing car design.

6.3 Recommendations for Futher Research

My recommendations for further research and development in this area is definitely adaptability of new software tools. OEM producers dictate the supply chain methodology, quality of R&D, production and supplies with almost zero tolerance in process deviations. Present project management falls down in sufficient intuitive but system tools for suppliers and project managers. Project manager will not choose a tool because of functionality and integrity, but a tool that will enable him to finish the project in agreed varying deadlines and to reach success

7 CONCLUSION

Project management has as many different forms nowadays as documented by Changes management. This work discusses current status and solutions for effective project management in the group of interconnected supplier's factories within Automotive category TIER 1 under conditions of multi project atmosphere.

Complexity of a solution is given by parallel running of multiple projects for the same customer with different types of simultaneous supplies. It refers to existing supplies of design, cubing, CAD tools design based on digital models of parts, simulations of heat flow, forming, crash tests and voltage flow. Also design and production of stamping tools, technologies, deliveries of stamped and welded parts, deliveries of assembled or measuring devices and last but not least, deliveries of complex automated assembly lines, discrete workstations or conveyor belts and manipulation technique directly for OEM car producer assembly line.

Such a complex environment full of different projects running in parallel is a specification of its own, individual needs based on exact timing and allocation of appropriate resources. Under these circumstances, single-level solutions do not work to support the project, despite being useful in other situations. Different projects have different timings and a cycle of a continuous need of resources that cause changes mostly in customer deadlines. Customer requires very quick, guaranteed action in agreed time and is not willing to accept changes on supplier's side such as postponing fulfilling of requirements to several months. It would destroy previously established coordination of resources. If we count also number of unexpected changes and projects running in parallel, it seems to be - on face of it an irresolvable task.

As IT support to project managers, this is the main reason to repeatedly look for right solutions. Following fundamental changes at automotive market (producers or sellers) at the end of first decade of 21st century, well-organized IT world of systems, supporting project management, must have changed its focus and reorganize into a plastic form of integration, cooperation and adjustment of existing tools.

It is not that unusual, to have in a single project 12 000 rows of managing tasks, in MS Project. It is a piece of work for several months for hundreds of employees. Many discrete ongoing tasks are coordinated on a daily basis. Coordination meetings held also on daily basis control, coordinate and plan activities for coming hours and days, step by step. With such a volume of people involved and

tasks, it is necessary to use different tools in a long run on a daily basis. MS Excel serves as a fundamental base of project manager, monitoring basic lines of MS Project plan that covers kappa planning and milestone in deadlines and coordination. At the same time, deadlines of individual parts and groups are updated at least on a weekly basis at RPlan and hundreds of open tasks are monitored, reported, notified and agreed at Sharepoint.

This information data structure ends as a report of a predefined structure as received from the customer (Figure 9). Mostly PowerPoint presentations consisting of supplier statuses and customer standpoint. It is the top of a pyramid of information and statuses of several systems, updated on a daily, maximum weekly basis. There is no single information system that would be independent and provide a project manager necessary support, not requiring coordination and interaction with other systems. Kappa planning, the same as other systems, signals the need for non-existing sources if deadlines are to be met, but looking back, capacities were always met on time.

Nowadays the only solution and necessity is coordination and system interconnection of several required systems to different levels of data and process need of the pyramid. Data pumps between integrated systems provide us with updated statuses, tasks reports with degree of completion, planning tools signal the need for resources and the start of implementation, notification systems alert responsible employees with reminders of ongoing but also delayed tasks. Reporting tools collect all data and turn them into statuses allowing taking immediate decisions in real time.

Every group of employees involved in a project uses appropriate tool at its level and at the same time has to obtain information from lower level and reports results to a higher one. The goal of a solution and IT support is to keep updated not tools themselves, but their integration and data accuracy all the time. There is a space for proprietary solutions:

- online passive report of customer internal portal of suppliers (Figure 24)
- locally stored information
- MS Excel for monitoring of external cooperation supplies (Figure 14)
- milestone tracking in Master MS Project plan (Figure 11)

- reporting deadlines of individual component and tools phases (*Figure 13*) and for a group of people involved into a project – Sharepoint notification system (*Figure 19, 20 and 21*).

Aggregated information are dominant for two key groups of receivers. Customers represent the first one. Information about meeting the deadlines and statuses of completed tasks are collected for their need. The second key group with a different report configuration is the group of shareholders. Their report consists of confirmed customer status and includes also resources disposal, status of estimated profitability of the project, unexpected problems and conflicts and future need of resources. This report is of the same importance as the first one and plays a big role in project support and necessary allocation of resources needed for its successful realization. Both reports must be regularly updated within a reasonable time by the project manager, with no delays, because it would cause neglection and inaccuracy and consequences could be fatal for further project development towards the customer but also within the company itself. This commitment and obligation must be taken over by IT support who will ensure a smooth flow of all required systems, communications and data integrity.

Accomplishment of required processes depends on cooperation between individual tools, strict separation of space for their operation, information matrix of data flow and sticking to the rules for regular and on-time updates. This is a way to create a flexible tool able to cope with a dynamic environment, adapt and process every single customer change, respect constancy of resources capacity and most of all a phenomenon of this era in project management concerning support tools – real time, accuracy of presented data and ability of early prediction of conflicts towards the customer.

Solution described and analyzed further is a unique system integration of generally used tools (Figure 17), completion of these tools with internal native integration of MS Project Pro into Sharepoint, online monitoring of RPlan portal statuses of the customer and established Sharepoint notification system that communicates interactively with employees through their native environment of MS Outlook.

8 LITERATURE SOURCES

Books

- [1] A Brilliant Project Management, Stephen Barker, Rob Cole, Pearson Education, Limited, 2012, ISBN: 027377509X
- [2] ROSSENAU, M.: Řízení projektů. Computer Press, Praha, 2000ISBN: 80-7226-218-1
- [3] SVOZILOVÁ, A.: Projektový management. GRADA Publishing, Praha, 2006ISBN 80-247-1501-5

Electronic sources

- [4] Projektove riadenie ako rodeo <u>http://www.itnews.sk/2012-06-04/c149171-</u> <u>dnesne-projektove-riadenie-pripomina-rodeo</u> accessed on 16/08/2014
 Ivan Klanica his occupation is Senior Project Manager, NESS Slovensko, a. s. Source: IW 6-7/2012
- [5] Sedliacky rozum <u>http://www.itnews.sk/2011-05-05/c139736-vyuzitie-</u> sedliackeho-rozumu-v-riadeni-projektov accessed on 16/08/2014
 JÁN GERO, PMP - Head of Project Management Department, SOITRON
- [6] Jana Balážová Ing. Peter Minárik, 23.7.2013 BPUG Slovensko, <u>http://www.bpug.sk/sk/clanky/2/</u> (BPUGTM Slovensko), accessed on 06/08/2014
- [7] Ing. Roman Ondrejka, katedra krízového manažmentu, Fakulta špeciálneho inžinierstva, Žilinská univerzita v Žiline <u>http://www.odbornecasopisy.cz/index.php?id_document=42740</u> accessed on 06/08/2014
- [8] Stefan Ondek, <u>http://podnikanie.etrend.sk/podnikanie-riadenie/ako-sa-vyhnut-bolehlavu-z-viacerych-projektov.html</u> accessed on 21/08/2014
- [9] By Andrew Makar in IT Consultant, September 10, 2013, 12:39 PM PST andymakar <u>http://www.techrepublic.com/blog/it-consultant/the-three-best-lessons-ilearned-from-a-failed-project_accessed on 6/09/2014</u>
- [10] The following guest post is by Russell Harley, a veteran project manager and PMO director.

http://www.forbes.com/sites/groupthink/2014/05/07/how-to-hire-a-greatproject-manager accessed on 02/09/2014

- [11] Comparation of comertial and Open source tools <u>http://www.itkonzult.sk/pm-</u> <u>sw.html_</u>accessed on 08/08/2014
- [12] PRINCE2 principes, <u>http://www.bestpractice.sk/sk/Best-practice/PM-PRINCE2.alej?gclid=CNqHteCnzsACFc7HtAodwgUARA</u> accessed on 06/08/2014
- [13] Table of project management tools , <u>http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Comparison_of_project_management_software</u> accessed on 16/08/2014

9 APPENDIX

- 1. Survey beetween project managers
- 2. Table of project management tools
- 3. CD with results in survey

Appendix 1

Survey between project managers (original slovakian)

Auto	motive Industry		:::: S
	Survey beetw	veen project managers.	
Pri ria	dení projektu Vás najviac zamestr	náva :	
	Dodržanie termínov projektu		
	Dosiahnutie požadovanej kvality		
	Organizácia vlastného tímu		
	Zmena požiadaviek a termínov záka	zníka v priebehu projektu	
Repo	rtovanie a údržba dát aktuálneho s	tavu projektu v systéme zákaznika :	
	Je žiadúce, lebo štandardizuje komu	unikačný jazyk a fakty stavu projektu	
	Je prospešné , lebo je zároveň aj int	terným systémom na sledovanie a riadenie projel	du
	Je to duplicitná / triplicitná práca a	viaže zbytočne zdroje na strane dodávateľa	
Zákaz	nik požaduje reportovať stav proje	ektu v :	
	Iba email		
0	Iba zápisy z projektových stretnutí		
0	Excel		
0	MS Project		
0	SAP		
	R Plan		
1	Enovia		
	Iný (uveďte prosím aký)		
Aktuá	lny projekt riadite interne v prostre	edi :	
	V prostredí zákazníka		
	Iba email		
	lba zápisy z projektových stretnutí		
	Excel		
	MS Project		
	SAP		
	R Plan		
	Enovia		
0	Team Center		
Ц	Iny (uvedte prosim aky)		
Za vš	eobecne najpoužívanejší nástroj n	a riadenie a reportovanie projektu považujete	:
	uveďte prosím aký :		_
Za naj	jlepší zo všetkých Vám známych p	ovažujete :	
	uveďte prosim aký :		<u> </u>
Prosim a	zaškrtnite vždy iba jednu možnosť	Survey PM, ID 1227688, Aug. 2014	Dakujem

Appendix 1

Survey between project managers (English)

<section-header> Survey bedrevee on project transmin Observance of project deallines Or agnisation of your team Canadian of the project deallines Or agnisation of your team Change on customer's demands and dates within a project Concort and keep data of project's actual condition in constance's system Is belaful, while it is standardizing komunication language and facts of project's condition Is belaful, while it is standardizing komunication language and facts of project's condition Is belaful, while it is standardizing komunication language and facts of project's condition Is belaful, while it is standardizing komunication language and facts of project's condition Is belaful, while it is standardizing komunication language and facts of project's condition Is belaful, while it is standardizing komunication Is belaful, while it is standa</section-header>	Autor	notive Industry	:::: S
By leading a project, takes the most of your time : Observance of project deadlines Image: To achieve required quality Organisation of your team Image: Change on customer's demands and dates within a project To report and keep data of project's actual condition in constumer's system : Image: Im		Survey beetween project managers.	
Observance of project deadlines To achieve required quality Organisation of your team Change on customer's demands and dates within a project To report and keep data of project's actual condition in constumer's system : Is desirable, while it is standardizing komunication language and facts of project's condition Is helpful, while it is sawell as internal system for observation and control project It is double/triple work and it unnecessarily bind sources on the providor side Customer requires a repor of project's condiion in : Just e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as :	By lea	ding a project , takes the most of your time :	
To achieve required quality Organisation of your team Change on customer's demands and dates within a project To report and keep data of project's actual condition in constumer's system : Is desirable, while it is standardizing komunication language and facts of project's condition Is helpful, while it is as well as internal system for observation and control project It is double/triple work and it unnecessarily bind sources on the providor side Customer requires a repor of project's condition in : Just e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Tream Center Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Tream Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : Please state :	0	Observance of project deadlines	
Organisation of your team Change on customer's demands and dates within a project To report and keep data of project's actual condition in constumer's system : Is desirable, while it is standardizing komunication language and facts of project's condition Is helpful, while it is as well as internal system for observation and control project It is double/triple work and it unnecessarily bind sources on the providor side Customer requires a repor of project's conditon in : Just e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) Customer's ambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) Customer's ambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel Din custumer's ambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel Din custumer's autual project : In coustumer's autual project : Din custumer's autual autual project project you consider as : Please state : Din custumer's autual project as : Please state : Distribution: Distribution: Distribution: Distribution: Distribution: Distribution: Distribution: Distribution: Distribution:	10	To achieve required quality	
Change on customer's demands and dates within a project To report and keep data of project's actual condition in constumer's system : Is desirable, while it is standardizing komunication language and facts of project's condition Is helpful, while it is as well as internal system for observation and control project It is double/triple work and it unnecessarily bind sources on the providor side Customer requires a repor of project's condition in : Just e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia To and center Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Customer sambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP Plan Customer's ambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The ass state (main	0	Organisation of your team	
To report and keep data of project's actual condition in constumer's system : Is desirable, while it is standardizing komunication language and facts of project's condition Is helpful, while it is as well as internal system for observation and control project It is double/triple work and it unnecessarily bind sources on the providor side Customer requires a repor of project's condition in : Just e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Te am Center Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Te am Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : P	ū	Change on customer's demands and dates within a project	
Is desirable, while it is standardizing komunication language and facts of project's condition Is helpful, while it is as well as internal system for observation and control project It is double/triple work and it unnecessarily bind sources on the providor side Customer requires a repor of project's condiion in : Just e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center' Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) Totam Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : Yuany 20 20122768, Aug. 2014	To rej	port and keep data of project's actual condition in constumer's system :	
Is helpful, while it is as well as internal system for observation and control project It is double/triple work and it unnecessarily bind sources on the providor side Customer requires a repor of project's condiion in : Just e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Could the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state :		Is desirable, while it is standardizing komunication language and facts of project's	condition
 It is double/triple work and it unnecessarily bind sources on the providor side Customer requires a repor of project's condiion in : Just e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel SAP You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state :		Is helpful, while it is as well as internal system for observation and control project	9
Customer requires a repor of project's condiion in : Just e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP Plan Conly the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as :		It is double/triple work and it unnecessarily bind sources on the providor side	
Just e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Conly the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state :	Custo	mer requires a repor of project's condiion in :	
Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state :	Π	Just e mail	
Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state :	ō	Only the enrolment from designing's meetings	
MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state)		Excel	
SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state)		MS Project	
R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state)		SAP	
Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state :		R Plan	
Team Center Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as :		Enovia	
Other (please, state) You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state		Team Center	
You are controlling your actual project : In coustumer's ambient Only e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state :		Other (please, state)	
In coustumer's ambient Only e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : Please state : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : Pleas	You a	re controlling your actual project :	
Only e mail Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : Please state : Yease, always check just one answer Survey PM, ID 1227688, Aug. 2014 Thank you		In coustumer's ambient	
Only the enrolment from designing's meetings Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : Please state : Yease, always check just one answer Survey PM, ID 1227688, Aug. 2014 Thank you		Only e mail	
Excel MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : Please state : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The state : The state is in the	0	Only the enrolment from designing's meetings	
MS Project SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : Please state : Please state : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The state : Please state : Please state : The state state : Please state	1	Excel	
SAP R Plan Enovia Team Center Other (please, state) For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : Please state : Please state : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : The state : Description Survey PM, ID 1227688, Aug. 2014 Thank you	U	MS Project	
	11	DAP	
	11	r rian Enovia	
Control center Control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : Yease, always check just one answer Survey PM, ID 1227688, Aug. 2014 Thank yo	0	Team Center	
For generally most used tool to control and report project you consider as : Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : Yease, always check just one answer Survey PM, ID 1227688, Aug. 2014	0	Other (please, state)	
Please state : The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : Bease, always check just one answer Survey PM, ID 1227688, Aug. 2014 Thank you	For g	enerally most used tool to control and report project you consider as :	
The best of all to you known you consider as : Please state : Yease, always check just one answer Survey PM, ID 1227688, Aug. 2014		Please state :	
Please state : Please state state : Please state sta	The b	est of all to you known you consider as :	
Please, always check just one answer Survey PM, ID 1227688, Aug, 2014 Thank yo	0	Please state :	
	Piease,	always check just one answer Survey PM, ID 1227688, Aug, 2014	Thank you

Appendix 2

Table of project management tools¹¹

Software	Collaborative software	<u>lssue</u> <u>tracking</u> system	Scheduling	Project Portfolio Management	<u>Resource</u> <u>Management</u>	<u>Document</u> <u>Management</u>	<u>Workflow</u> system	Reporting and Analyses
<u>10,000ft</u>	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
<u>2-plan</u>	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
24SevenOffice	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
AceProject	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
<u>Anyplan</u>	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Apache Bloodhound	Yes	Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes	No
Assembla	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>AtTask</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>Axosoft</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Basecamp	Yes	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	No	No
<u>Binfire</u>	Yes	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
<u>Bontq</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	No
Brightpod	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
BrightWork	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
Calligra Plan	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No
Ceiton workflow	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>system</u>								
<u>Celoxis</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Central Desktop	Yes	Yes	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
<u>Clarizen</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
ClickHome	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>Collabtive</u>	Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	Yes
Compuware Changepoint	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>ConceptDraw</u> <u>Project</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Concerto Projects	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Contactizer	Yes	No	No	No	Yes	No	No	No
Copper Project	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
<u>Deltek Open Plan</u>	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes

¹¹ <u>http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Comparison_of_project_management_software</u>

Software	Collaborative software	<u>lssue</u> tracking system	Scheduling	Project Portfolio Management	<u>Resource</u> <u>Management</u>	<u>Document</u> <u>Management</u>	<u>Workflow</u> system	Reporting and Analyses
<u>Deltek</u>	Vaa	Voo	No	Vaa	No	Vaa	Vaa	Vee
WelcomHome	165	165	NU	165	NO	165	165	165
<u>DeskAway</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	No
<u>Doolphy</u>	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
<u>dotProject</u>	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
<u>DynaRoad</u>	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Easy projects	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes
Eclipse PPM	Ves	Ves	Ves	Ves	Ves	Ves	Ves	Ves
<u>software</u>	105	163	165	163	165	165	163	165
<u>eGroupWare</u>	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
Endeavour Software								
<u>Project</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
<u>Management</u>								
<u>enQuire</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
eXo Platform	Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
Eylean Board	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
FastTrack Schedule	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Feng Office Community Edition	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	No
FinancialForce.com	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes
FogBugz	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
FusionForge	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No
<u>Ganttic</u>	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	No
<u>GanttProject</u>	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No
Genius Project	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>Goodwerp</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No
<u>GroveSite</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	No
Hall.com	Yes	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	No	No
HP Project &	Ves	Ves	Ves	Ves	Ves	Ves	Ves	Ves
Portfolio Software	105	165	165	105	105	105	163	105
<u>Huddle</u>	Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
Hyperoffice	Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
iManageProject	Yes	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	No	No
<u>in-Step</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>InLoox</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes

Software	<u>Collaborative</u>	<u>lssue</u> tracking	Schedulina	<u>Project</u> Portfolio	Resource	Document	Workflow	Reporting and
	<u>software</u>	system		Management	Management	<u>Management</u>	<u>system</u>	Analyses
<u>JIRA</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	No	Yes	Yes
<u>Journyx</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
Kayako helpdesk	Yes	Yes	No	No	No	Yes	No	No
<u>software</u>	105	103		No	No	105		NO
Launchpad	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No	No
<u>LibrePlan</u>	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes
<u>LiquidPlanner</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
LisaProject	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No
<u>MacProject</u>	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No
<u>MantisBT</u>	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No
MatchWare								
MindView 5	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
Business Edition								
<u>Mavenlink</u>	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
<u>Merlin</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
Microsoft Dynamics	Vec	No	Vec	No	Vec	Vec	Vec	Vos
<u>AX</u>	165	NO	103	NO	165	105	165	103
Microsoft Office	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Project Server								
Microsoft Project	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes
Microsoft	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes	Yes	No
SharePoint Server								
Microsoft Team	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>Poundation Server</u>								
Professional	No	Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes	No	No
MindGenius	Yes	No	Yes	No	Ves	No	No	No
MvWorkPLAN	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Métier	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
NetPoint	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No
NetSuite	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
	Vec	No	No	No	No	Vec	No	No
<u>Odoo</u>	Vec	Vee	Vee	Vec	Vec	Vec	Vee	Vee
	res	res	res	res	res	res	res	res
<u>OmniPlan</u>	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes
OnePager Pro	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes

Software	Collaborative software	<u>lssue</u> tracking system	Scheduling	Project Portfolio Management	<u>Resource</u> <u>Management</u>	<u>Document</u> <u>Management</u>	<u>Workflow</u> system	Reporting and Analyses
Onepoint Project	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
Open Workbench	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No
<u>OpenProj</u>	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No
<u>OpenProject</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No
<u>Oracle Primavera</u> <u>EPPM</u> (Primavera P6)	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
phpGroupWare	Yes	Yes	No	N/A	Yes	Yes	No	No
<u>PHProjekt</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	No	No	No
Pivotal Tracker	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>Planbox</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
<u>Plandora</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
<u>Planisware</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Planner Suite	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
PLANTA Project	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Project KickStart	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>Project Team</u> <u>Builder</u>	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
Project-Open	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Project.net	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>ProjectLink</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
ProjectManager.com	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Projector PSA	No	No	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Projectplace	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
<u>Projecturf</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
ProjektronBCS	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>ProjeQtOr</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Proliance	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No
Prolog	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>QuickBase</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
RationalPlan	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Realisor	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes
Redbooth	Yes ^[5]	Unknown	Unknown	Yes	Yes	Yes	Unknown	Unknown
Redmine	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No

Software	Collaborative software	<u>Issue</u> tracking system	Scheduling	Project Portfolio Management	<u>Resource</u> Management	Document Management	<u>Workflow</u> system	Reporting and Analyses
SAP Business		<u>ojotom</u>		<u>Interlegenterle</u>				<u>/</u>
<u>ByDesign</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Sciforma	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>Severa</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Smartsheet	Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
TACTIC	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>Talygen</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
TargetProcess	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes
TaskJuggler	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No
Teamcenter	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>TeamDynamixHE</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>TeamLab</u>	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
<u>Tenrox</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>TestTrack</u>	Yes	Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes	Yes
The Bug Genie	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	Yes	Yes
Tom's Planner	Yes	No	Yes	No	No	No	No	No
<u>Trac</u>	Yes	Yes	No	No	No	No	Yes	No
TrackerSuite.Net	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	es	Yes	Yes
Traction TeamPage	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	No	Yes
<u>Trello</u>	Yes	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	No	N/A	N/A
<u>Twproject</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
<u>Ubidesk</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	No	Yes	No	No
web2project	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes
Workgroups DaVinci	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
WorkPLAN Enterprise	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
workspace.com	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Unknown	Unknown
<u>Wrike</u>	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Zoho Projects	Yes	Yes	Yes	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes

Figure 2 – Table of project management tools

Source : http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Comparison_of_project_management_software